
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Licensing Sub Committee Hearing 
Panel 
 
 

Date: Tuesday, 6 April 2021 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Dial: 033 3113 3058 Room number: 37978770 # PIN: 
2991 # 

 
Everyone is welcome to attend this Sub-Committee meeting. 
 

 
The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of 
Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020 
 
Under the provisions of these regulations the location where a meeting is held can 
include reference to more than one place including electronic, digital or virtual 
locations such as internet locations, web addresses or conference call telephone 
numbers. This meeting is by way of a telephone conference. You can listen to the call 
as it takes place, the number of people able to listen to the live call is limited to 90. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Membership of the Licensing Sub Committee 
Hearing Panel 

Councillors - Grimshaw (Chair), Andrews and Evans 

Public Document Pack



Licensing Sub Committee Hearing Panel 

 

 

Agenda 
 
1.   Urgent Business 

To consider any items which the Chair has agreed to have 
submitted as urgent. 
 

 

2.   Appeals 
To consider any appeals from the public against refusal to allow 
inspection of background documents and/or the inclusion of items 
in the confidential part of the agenda. 
 

 

3.   Interests 
To allow Members an opportunity to [a] declare any personal, 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they might have in 
any items which appear on this agenda; and [b] record any items 
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council 
Tax/Council rent arrears; [c] the existence and nature of party 
whipping arrangements in respect of any item to be considered at 
this meeting. Members with a personal interest should declare 
that at the start of the item under consideration.  If Members also 
have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they must 
withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of the item. 
 

 

4.   New Premises Licence - TBC, 135 Levenshulme Road, 
Manchester, M18 7NF - determination 
The determination papers are enclosed. 
 

5 - 8 

5.   New Premises Licence - The Progress Centre and Car park, 
Charlton Place, Manchester, M12 6HS 
The report of the Director of Planning, Building Control and 
Licensing is enclosed. 
 

9 - 88 

6.   New Premises Licence - Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham 
Road, Manchester, M14 6JS 
The report of the Director of Planning, Building Control and 
Licensing is enclosed. 
 

89 - 200 

7.   New Premises Licence - Cabrals, 735 Ashton Old Road, 
Manchester, M11 2HD 
The report of the Director of Planning, Building Control and 
Licensing is enclosed. 
 

201 - 242 

8.   Temporary Event Notice - Zloto Polski, 2 Church Road, 
Manchester, M22 4NE 
Agreement has been reached between GMP and the applicant. 
Hearing no longer necessary. 
 

 



Licensing Sub Committee Hearing Panel 

 

 

Information about the Committee  

The Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Panel fulfills the functions of the Licensing 
Authority in relation to the licensing of premises. 
 
A procedure has been agreed which governs how the Panel will consider such 
applications. 
 
Decisions made by the Panel will be under delegated authority and will not require to 
be referred to the Council for approval. Meetings are controlled by the Chair, who is 
responsible for seeing that the business on the agenda is dealt with properly.  
 
Copies of the agenda are published on the Council’s website. Some additional copies 
are available at the meeting from the Governance Support Officer.   
 
The Council is concerned to ensure that its meetings are as open as possible and 
confidential business is kept to the strict minimum. When confidential items are 
involved these are considered at the end of the meeting at which point members of 
the public are asked to leave. 
 
Smoking is not allowed in Council buildings.  
 
Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 
Level 3, Town Hall Extension, 
Albert Square, 
Manchester, M60 2LA 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Further Information 

For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the Committee 
Officer:  
 Ian Hinton-Smith 
 Tel: 0161 234 3043 
 Email: ian.hinton-smith@manchester.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Thursday, 25 March 2021 by the Governance and 
Scrutiny Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 3, Town Hall Extension (Lloyd 
Street Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005                           
 
 

Reference: 254855 

Name: 135 Levenshulme Road 

Address: 135 Levenshulme Road, Manchester, M18 7NF 

Ward: Longsight 

Application Type:  Premises Licence (new) 

Name of Applicant:  Friendz Enterprise Ltd 

Date of application:   09 February 2021 

 
Agreement has been reached between the applicant and all parties that submitted 
relevant representations. 

 
The Sub-Committee is asked to grant the application subject to the modifications 
agreed between the parties without the need for a hearing. 
 
If the Sub-Committee is not minded to grant the application as above, it is requested 
to adjourn the matter for a full hearing to be held to determine the application. 
 

Proposed licensable activities and opening hours to be granted 

The supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises only: 

Mon to Sun 8am to 11pm 

 

Opening hours: 

Mon to Sun 8am to 11pm 

 

 

Representations received  

Trading Standards 
Concerns over the applicant’s awareness of the 
procedures needed to be implemented to protect 
children from harm  

Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance 
Concerns regarding the absence of conditions to 
uphold the licensing objectives and no risk 
assessment having been conducted. 

 

Agreements between parties 

 

Page 5

Item 4



Trading Standards: 

1. The Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated to ensure that any person who appears 
to be under the age of 25 shall provide documented proof that he/she is over 18 years 
of age. Proof of age shall only comprise a passport, photo card driving licence, an HM 
Forces warrant card, or a card bearing the PASS hologram. 

2. All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol shall be trained with regards to the Challenge 
25 policy. This training will be documented, and training should be refreshed at no 
greater than 6 monthly Intervals. This training should also include sale of alcohol by 
proxy. 

3. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that signage demonstrating the Challenge 
25 policy as well as selling alcohol to children by proxy are placed at the entrance to 
the premises as well as being displayed in all areas selling alcohol.  

4. The Premise Licence Holder shall also ensure regular checks are made around or 
outside of the premises for underage persons encouraging adults to buy alcohol for 
them. Installing CCTV should also help towards monitoring of external areas. 

5. A log shall be kept and record all instances when alcohol has been refused for the 
reasons that the person(s) is, or appear to be, under 18 years of age. The log shall 
record the date and time of the refusal and the name of the member of staff who 
refused the sale. The log shall be available on request by the police or an authorised 
officer of Manchester City Council. The log shall be checked on a regular basis by the 
Designated Premises Supervisor to ensure that it is being used by staff and each 
check shall be recorded in the log. 

 

Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance: 

6. The Licence holder shall ensure that at all times there are sufficient competent staff on 
duty at the premises for the purpose of fulfilling the terms and conditions of the 
Licence and the prevention of crime and disorder. 

7. The Licence holder shall ensure that all staff undertake training in their responsibilities 
in relation to the sale of alcohol, particularly with regard to drunkenness and underage 
persons. 

8. Records shall be kept of all training and refresher training. 

9. An Incident book shall be kept at the Premises. All alcohol sell related incident shall be 
recorded formally. 

10. Any incidents of a criminal nature that may occur on the Premises shall be reported to 
the Police. 

11. The Licence holder shall install comprehensive CCTV coverage at the Premises. 
CCTV shall be operated and maintained on the Premises. 

12. Recordings of CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of 31 days and shall be made 
available to Responsible Authorities upon request. 

13. All customers shall be asked to leave the Premises in a quiet manner. 

14. Clear and legible notices shall be prominently displayed to remind customers to leave 
the premises quietly and to have regard for neighbours. 

15. A camera shall be located outside the premises and a monitor near the till area so 
staff can monitor any outside nuisance 

16. Same as condition 1 agreed with Trading Standards 

17. Same as condition 2 agreed with Trading Standards 

18. Same as condition 5 agreed with Trading Standards  

 

 
 
 

 
Page 6

Item 4



Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 

 Manchester City Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 - 2021 

 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, April 2017  

 Original application form 

 Representations made against application and respective agreements 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 7

Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council 
Report for Resolution 

 
Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Panel – 06 April 2021 
 
Subject: The Progress Centre and Car park, Progress Centre, Charlton Place, 

Manchester, M12 6HS - App ref: Premises Licence (new) 255611 
 
Report of: Director of Planning, Building Control & Licensing   
 

 
Summary 
 
Application for the grant of a premises licence which has attracted objections. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Panel determine the application. 
 

 
Wards Affected: Ardwick 
 

Manchester Strategy Outcomes Summary of the contribution to the 
strategy 

A thriving and sustainable City: 
supporting a diverse and distinctive 
economy that creates jobs and 
opportunities 

Licensed premises provide a key role as an 
employer, in regeneration, and in attracting 
people to the city. The efficient processing of 
applications as well as effective decision 
making in respect of them, plays an essential 
role in enabling businesses to thrive and 
maximise contribution to the economy of the 
region and sub-region. 

A highly skilled city: world class and 
home grown talent sustaining the 
city’s economic success 

An effective Licensing regime will enable 
growth in our City by supporting businesses 
who promote the Licensing Objectives. 

A progressive and equitable city: 
making a positive contribution by 
unlocking the potential of our 
communities 

 

The Licensing process provides for local 
residents and other interested parties to make 
representations in relation to licensing 
applications. Representations have to be 
directly related to the licensing objectives. 

A liveable and low carbon city: a 
destination of choice to live, visit 
and work. 

 

An effective licensing system supports and 
enables growth and employment in our City 
with neighbourhoods that provide amenities 
suitable to the surrounding communities.  

Page 9

Item 5



A connected city: world class 
infrastructure and connectivity to 
drive growth 

 

 
Full details are in the body of the report, along with any implications for: 
 
Equal Opportunities Policy 
Risk Management 
Legal Considerations 
 

 
Financial Consequences – Revenue 
 
None 
 
Financial Consequences – Capital 
 
None 
 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name: Fraser Swift 
Position: Principal Licensing Officer  
Telephone: 0161 234 1176 
E-mail: premises.licensing@manchester.gov.uk  

 
Name: 

 
Ashia Maqsood 

Position: Technical Licensing Officer  
Telephone: 0161 234 4139 
E-mail: premises.licensing@manchester.gov.uk  

 

 
Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 

 Manchester City Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 - 2021 

 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, April 2017 

 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 

 Any further documentary submissions by any party to the hearing

Page 10

Item 5

mailto:premises.licensing@manchester.gov.uk
mailto:premises.licensing@manchester.gov.uk


1. Introduction 

1.1 On 8 February 2021, an application for the grant of a Premises Licence under 
s17 of the Licensing Act 2003 was made in respect of The Progress Centre 
and Car park, Progress Centre, Charlton Place, Manchester, M12 6HS in the 
Ardwick ward of Manchester. A location map and photograph of the premises 
is attached at Appendix 1. 

1.2 A 28-day public consultation exercise was undertaken in accordance with 
Licensing Act 2003 regulations; requiring the application to be advertised by 
the displaying of a blue notice at or on the premises, a notice published in a 
newspaper or similar circulating in the local area, and details of the application 
published on the Council’s website. 

1.3 Representations may be made for or against an application during the 
consultation period. To be ‘relevant’ and, therefore, able to be taken into 
account in determining the application, they must be about the likely effect of 
the grant of the premises licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
Where representations are made by persons who are not a responsible 
authority, they must not be frivolous or vexatious. 

1.4 Relevant representations have been received in respect of this application and 
so it must be determined by a Licensing Hearing Panel in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution. 

2. The Application 

2.1 A copy of the application is attached at Appendix 2. 

2.2 The applicant is Progress MCR Limited. 

2.3 The description of the premises given by the applicant is: 
Ground Floor: café for Late Night Refreshment. 
Third Floor: music & event space. 
External car park area to be used for events. The hours for the external 
area will be 12:00 until 23:00 when events take place. 
 

2.4 The proposed designated premises supervisor is Oliver Keenan Ryder  

2.5 The licensable activities applied for are: 

 Provision of regulated entertainment 
 (live music, recorded music, performances of dance and anything of a similar 

description to live music, recorded music or performances of dance): Indoors  

Third Floor Event Space  
Sunday to Thursday 10pm to 3.30am Friday and Saturday 10pm to 5am 

External Area 
Monday to Sunday 12 noon to 11pm  

Non standard timings (NST):  

Page 11

Item 5



  An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday weekend, and the 
Thursday preceding Good Friday. An extra hour when British Summer Time 
commences. From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the end of 
permitted hours on New Years Day 

 Provision of late night refreshment: Both on and off the premises  

 Ground Floor Café  
 Sunday to Thursday 11pm to 3.30am  
 Friday and Saturday 11pm to 5am 
 
 NST : An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday weekend, 

and the Thursday preceding Good Friday. An extra hour when British Summer 
Time commences. From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the 
end of permitted hours on New Years Day 

The supply of alcohol for consumption both on and off the premises: 

Third floor event space 
Sunday to Thursday 10pm to 3am  
Friday and Saturday 10pm to 4.30am 
 
External Area  
Monday to Sunday 12 noon to 11pm 
 
NST :  
An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday weekend, and the  
Thursday preceding Good Friday. An extra hour when British Summer Time  
commences. From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the end of  
permitted hours on New Years Day. 
 
Opening Hours   
Monday to Sunday – 24 Hours 
 
External Area Monday to Sunday 12 noon to 11pm 
  
NST :  
An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday weekend, and the  
Thursday preceding Good Friday. An extra hour when British Summer Time  
commences. From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the end of  
permitted hours on New Years Day. 
 

2.5.1 In accordance with the Live Music Act 2012 and Deregulation Act 2015, 
performances of Live Music and Recorded Music between the hours of 0800 
and 2300 hours have been deregulated and so should not be regarded as 
licensable activities for the purposes of this application. 

2.5.2 Any further details provided relating to any of the individual licensable activities 
are specified on the application form at Appendix 2. 

2.6 Activities unsuitable for children  

Page 12

Item 5



2.6.1 The applicant has not highlighted any adult entertainment or services, 
activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the premises 
that may give rise to concern in respect of children. 

2.7 Steps to promote the licensing objectives 

2.7.1 The applicant proposes to promote the licensing objectives by taking the steps 
identified in the operating schedule. 

2.7.2 These steps must be translated into conditions by the licensing authority to be 
included in any granted premises licence, unless the conditions are modified 
by the Panel following consideration of relevant representations. These 
conditions are set out in the Schedule of Conditions at Appendix 4. 

2.8 Further documentation accompanying the application 

2.8.1 The applicant has submitted the following documents in support of their 
application, which are included with the application form at Appendix 2: 

 Smoking Policy 

 Dispersal Policy 

 Drugs policy  

3. Relevant Representations 

3.1 A total of One relevant representations were received in respect of the 
application (Appendix 3):  

 Ward Councillor x1 
 

3.2 Summary of the representations:  

Party Grounds of representation Recommends 

Ward 
Councillors 

The Ward Councillor objected to the application 
on the grounds that the area the premises is 
located in is residential, and that local residents 
will not appreciate the noise generated from 
the premises and any external events. 

Not stated  

3.3 Any conditions proposed by objectors are set out in the Schedule of 
Conditions at Appendix 4. 

3.4 No Agreements on conditions have been reached. 

3.5 The applicant has submitted further documentation in response to the 
objection, at Appendix 5. 

3.6 Appendix 5 includes a record of emails between the parties and documents 
submitted by the applicant in support of their application (case law and a 
record of Temporary events held at the premises) 

Page 13

Item 5



4. Key Policies and Considerations 

4.1 Legal Considerations 

4.1.1 Hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 operate under the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005. 

4.2 New Information 

4.2.1 In accordance with Regulation 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005, the authority may take into account documentary or other 
information produced by a party in support of their application, representations 
or notice either before the hearing or, with the consent of all parties, at the 
hearing. 

4.3 Hearsay Evidence 

4.3.1 The Panel may accept hearsay evidence and it will be a matter for the Panel 
to attach what weight to it that they consider appropriate. Hearsay evidence is 
evidence of something that a witness neither saw nor heard, but has heard or 
read about. 

4.4 The Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 

4.4.1 The Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 is provided for all 
parties involved in licensing. It is a key medium for promoting best practice, 
ensuring consistent application of licensing powers across England and Wales 
and for promoting fairness, equal treatment and proportionality.  

4.4.2 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a 
licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State under section 182. The Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing 
authorities to that extent. However, the Guidance cannot anticipate every 
possible scenario or set of circumstances that may arise and, as long as 
licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they may depart 
from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.  

4.4.3 Departure from the Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, 
and the reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when 
considering the lawfulness and merits of any decision taken. 

4.5 Manchester Statement of Licensing Policy 

4.5.1 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a 
licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ its statement of licensing policy. 

4.5.2 The Licensing Policy sets out the vision the licensing authority has for the 
regulation of licensed premises throughout Manchester and outlines the 
standards expected in order to ensure the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in the city. The Panel may depart from the policies should it 
consider doing so would benefit the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
Reasons are to be given for any such departure from the Policy. 

Page 14

Item 5



4.5.3 Section 4 of the Policy (Operation of the Policy) sets out how the Licensing 
Policy is intended to be used in practice for licence applications and licensed 
premises. 

4.5.4 Relevant to this application and the grounds of the representations made, the 
Panel are recommended to have regard to the following sections of the Policy: 

 Section 6: What we aim to encourage 
 This section identifies certain types of venues and initiatives the licensing 

authority aims to encourage in order to promote an inclusive evening and 
night-time economy not simply focused on the consumption of alcohol. We 
aim to encourage: 

 Premises that will extend the diversity of entertainment and attract a 
wider range of participants 

 Live music, especially original material, which will provide a range of 
live performances and styles of music, provided that such 
entertainment does not undermine the licensing objectives 

 National cultural institutions, global sports events and cultural festivals 

 Non-drink-led premises, including restaurants, cafes, theatres and 
cinemas 

 Communication and integration with local residents and businesses 
through licensees consulting with those in the local area prior to an 
application 

 Participation in Pubwatches, off licence forums and other crime-
reduction partnerships 

 Engagement with the NITENET radio scheme and DISC secure 
information sharing platform by city centre venues through the Cityco 
Manchester Business Crime Reduction Partnership 

 Designing out crime in the layout of the premises 

 Section 7: Local factors   
 This section sets out key issues that applicants are expected to take into 

account relevant to the individual characteristics of the premises when 
preparing their operating schedule and address any local factors relevant to 
their premises.  

 Having regard to the grounds of the representations made, the Panel are 
recommended to have regard to the following Factors: 

 Identified risk factors specific to the licensed premises 

 Evidence of pre-existing problems in the area 

 Consistency with relevant Council strategies 

 The proximity of the premises to local residents and other local 
businesses, particularly in relation to the potential for nuisance  

 Section 8: Manchester’s standards to promote the licensing objectives 
 This section identifies the standards that the licensing authority expects of 

licensed premises in Manchester. It is recognised that not all standards will be 
appropriate to apply in every situation to every premises, and applicants are 
not obliged to include all standards in their operating schedule. The degree to 
which standards would be appropriate is expected to be proportionate to the 
risk posed against the promotion of the licensing objectives having regard to 

Page 15

Item 5



the individual circumstances of the premises. The standards are not 
exhaustive and the licensing authority will have regard to any relevant issues 
raised in any representation that may fall outside them.   

MS2 Effective general management of the premises  

MS3 Responsible promotion and sale of alcohol  

MS5 Prevent on-street consumption of alcohol  
MS8 Prevent noise nuisance from the premises 
MS9 Effectively manage exterior spaces (e.g. beer gardens, smoking 

areas, table and chair areas on the highway) 
MS10 Operate effective cleansing arrangements, including ensuring the 

premises and surrounding area are kept clean and free of litter, and 

adequate arrangements for the secure and responsible storage of 

refuse 

 Section 9: Alcohol delivery services 
 This section sets out specific provisions for alcohol delivery services to be 

considered in conjunction with relevant standards from Section 8 of the Policy 

 Section 10: Adult entertainment (including striptease, nudity and other 

entertainment of a sexual nature) 

 This section sets out specific considerations in respect of applications to 
provide adult entertainment, including entertainment of a sexual nature e.g. 
nudity, striptease and lap dancing. 

 Section 11: The use of tables and chairs on the public highway 
 This section provides that the operation of any areas on the public highway 

licensed for tables and chairs should be considered with regard to all relevant 
Standards set out in Section 8 of the Policy. 

 Section 12: Premises Licences for large-scale public events 
 This section sets out particular expectations regarding large scale public 

events, given the specific associated risks. 

5.   Conclusion 

5.1   A licensing authority must carry out its functions under this Act (“licensing 
functions”) with a view to promoting the licensing objectives: 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety; 

 the prevention of public nuisance; and 

 the protection of children from harm. 

5.2   In considering the matter, the Panel should take into account any 
representations or objections that have been received from responsible 
authorities or other persons, and representations made by the applicant or 
premises user as the case may be. In reaching the decision, regard must also 
be had to relevant provisions of the national guidance and the Council’s 
licensing policy statement. 

Page 16

Item 5



5.3   Having regard to the representations, the Panel must take such of the steps 
set out below that it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives: 

a)  To grant the licence subject to: 
i. the conditions consistent with the operating schedule 

accompanying the application, which the Panel may modify 
to such extent as they consider appropriate, and 

ii. any mandatory conditions that must be included in the 
licence; 

b)  To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates; 

c)  To refuse to specify the person proposed in the application as the 
designated premises supervisor; 

d)  To reject the application. 

5.4   The conditions consistent with the operating schedule may be modified to alter 
or omit any of them or to add any new condition, including restricting the times 
at which licensable activities authorised by the licence can take place. 

5.5   All licensing determinations should be considered on the individual merits of 
the application. 

5.6   The Panel’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to 
what it is intended to achieve. Findings on any issues of fact should be on the 
balance of probability. 

5.7   It is important that a licensing authority should give comprehensive reasons 
for its decisions in anticipation of any appeals. Failure to give adequate 
reasons could itself give rise to grounds for an appeal.  

5.8   The Panel is asked to determine the application

 

Page 17

Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

PREMISE NAME: The Progress Centre and Car park 

PREMISE ADDRESS:  Progress Centre, Charlton Place, Manchester, M12 
6HS 

WARD:  Ardwick 

HEARING DATE:  06/04/2021 

Page 19

Item 5Appendix 1,

maqsooda
Arrow

maqsooda_1
Arrow



This page is intentionally left blank



 Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you are 

completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your 

answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary. 

 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

 

 

I/We Progress MCR Limited 

         (Insert name(s) of applicant)  

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 

described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the 

relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Part 1 – Premises details 

  

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

The Progress Centre 

Charlton Place 

Ardwick 

Post town Manchester Postcode M12 6HS 

 

Telephone number at premises (if any)         

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £tbc 

 

Part 2 - Applicant details 

 

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as        Please tick as appropriate 

 

a) an individual or individuals *  please complete section (A) 

b) a person other than an individual *   

 i as a limited company/limited liability 

partnership 

x please complete section (B) 

 ii as a partnership (other than limited 

liability) 

 please complete section (B) 

 iii as an unincorporated association or  please complete section (B) 

 iv other (for example a statutory corporation)  please complete section (B) 

c) a recognised club  please complete section (B) 

d) a charity  please complete section (B) 

Page 21

Item 5Appendix 2,



e) the proprietor of an educational establishment  please complete section (B) 

f) a health service body  please complete section (B) 

g) 

 

 

 

ga) 

 

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the 

Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an 

independent hospital in Wales 

 

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of 

Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 

(within the meaning of that Part) in an 

independent hospital in England 

 

 

 

 

 

 

please complete section (B) 

 

 

 

please complete section (B) 

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in 

England and Wales 

 please complete section (B) 

 

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one 

box below):     

 

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the 

premises for licensable activities; or 
x 

I am making the application pursuant to a   

 statutory function or  

 a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative  

 

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable) 

 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 
      

 

Surname 

      

First names 

      

Date of birth                                    I am 18 years old or over   Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current residential 

address if different from 

premises address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 

(optional) 
      

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work 

checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see 

note 15 for information) 

 

           
 

 

Page 22

Item 5Appendix 2,



SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable) 

 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 
      

 

Surname 

      

First names 

      

Date of birth                                 I am 18 years old or over  Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work 

checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: (please see 

note 15 for information) 

 

           

 

Current residential 

address if different from 

premises address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 

(optional) 
      

 

 

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS 

 

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where appropriate please 

give any registered number.  In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a 

body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned. 

 

Name 

Progress MCR Limited 

Address 

31 King Street West 

Manchester 

M3 2PJ 

Registered number (where applicable) 

11227794 

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.) 

Private Limited Company 

Page 23

Item 5Appendix 2,



Telephone number (if any)  

 

E-mail address (optional) 

 

 

Part 3 Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start? 
DD MM YYYY 

                
 

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, 

when do you want it to end? 

DD MM YYYY 

                
 

 

 

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1) 

Ground Floor: café for Late Night Refreshment. 

 

 

Third Floor: music & event space. 

 

External car park area to be used for events. The hours for the external area will be 12:00 until 

23:00 when events take place. 

 

 

The hours not covered by the proposed licensable activities will be for tenants of the various 

units and their guests (all floors) to access the building and various areas. 

 

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any 

one time, please state the number expected to attend. 
      

 

 

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 

 

(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 

 

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)         
Please tick all that 

apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)  

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) x 

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) x 

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) x 

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  

(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 
x 

Page 24

Item 5Appendix 2,



 

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)  x 

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J) x 

 

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 25

Item 5Appendix 2,



A 

 

Plays  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of a play take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon   Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
  

Tue   

  

Wed   State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read 

guidance note 5) 

   

Thur   

  

Fri   Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of plays at different times to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

  

Sat   

  

Sun   

            

 

Page 26

Item 5Appendix 2,



B 
 

Films  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the exhibition of films take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)  

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon   Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue   

            

Wed   State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please 

read guidance note 5) 

             

Thur   

            

Fri   Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat   

            

Sun   

            

 

Page 27

Item 5Appendix 2,



C 
 

Indoor sporting events  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4) 

      

Day Start Finish 

Mon   

  

Tue   State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please 

read guidance note 5) 

   

Wed   

  

Thur   Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

  

Fri   

  

Sat   

  

Sun   

            

 

Page 28

Item 5Appendix 2,



D 
 

Boxing or wrestling 

entertainments  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment 

take place indoors or outdoors or both – 

please tick (please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon   Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
  

Tue   

  

Wed   State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling 

entertainment (please read guidance note 5) 

   

Thur   

  

Fri   Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 

note 6) 

      

  

Sat   

  

Sun   

            

 

Page 29

Item 5Appendix 2,



E 
 

Live music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of live music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors x 

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 22:00 03:30 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Third floor event space. 

 

The external area will be licensed from 12:00 until 23:00 on 

Mondays to Sundays. This will be when events take place only. 

            

Tue 22:00 03:30 

            

Wed 22:00 03:30 State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music 

(please read guidance note 5) 

An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday 

weekend, and the Thursday preceding Good Friday.  

 

An extra hour when British Summer Time commences.  

 

From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the end of 

permitted hours on New Years Day. 

            

Thur 22:00 03:30 

            

Fri 22:00 05:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of live music at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 

note 6) 

      

            

Sat 22:00 05:00 

            

Sun 22:00 03:30 

            

 

Page 30

Item 5Appendix 2,



F 
 

Recorded music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the playing of recorded music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors x 

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 22:00 03:30 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Third floor event space 

 

The external area will be licensed from 12:00 until 23:00 on 

Mondays to Sundays. This will be when events take place only. 

            

Tue 22:00 03:30 

            

Wed 22:00 03:30 State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music 

(please read guidance note 5) 

An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday 

weekend, and the Thursday preceding Good Friday.  

 

An extra hour when British Summer Time commences.  

 

From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the end of 

permitted hours on New Years Day. 

            

Thur 22:00 03:30 

            

Fri 22:00 05:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the playing of recorded music at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 

note 6) 

      

            

Sat 22:00 05:00 

            

Sun 22:00 03:30 

            

 

Page 31

Item 5Appendix 2,



G 
 

Performances of 

dance 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

 

Will the performance of dance take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors x 

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 22:00 03:30 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Third floor event space 

 

The external area will be licensed from 12:00 until 23:00 on 

Mondays to Sundays. This will be when events take place only. 

            

Tue 22:00 03:30 

            

Wed 22:00 03:30 State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance 

(please read guidance note 5) 

An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday 

weekend, and the Thursday preceding Good Friday.  

 

An extra hour when British Summer Time commences.  

 

From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the end of 

permitted hours on New Years Day. 

            

Thur 22:00 03:30 

            

Fri 22:00 05:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat 22:00 05:00 

            

Sun 22:00 03:30 

            

 

Page 32

Item 5Appendix 2,



H 
 

Anything of a similar 

description to that 

falling within (e), (f) or 

(g) 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be 

providing 

      

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or 

outdoors or both – please tick (please read 

guidance note 3)  

Indoors x 

Mon 22:00 03:30 Outdoors  

            Both  

Tue 22:00 03:30 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Third floor event space 

 

The external area will be licensed from 12:00 until 23:00 on 

Mondays to Sundays. This will be when events take place only. 

            

Wed 22:00 03:30 

            

Thur 22:00 03:30 State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 

description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read 

guidance note 5) 

An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday 

weekend, and the Thursday preceding Good Friday.  

 

An extra hour when British Summer Time commences.  

 

From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the end of 

permitted hours on New Years Day. 

            

Fri 22:00 05:00 

            

Sat 
22:00 05:00 

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the entertainment of a similar description to that falling 

within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      
            

Sun 
22:00 03:30 

            

 

Page 33

Item 5Appendix 2,



 I 
 

Late night 

refreshment 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

 

Will the provision of late night refreshment 

take place indoors or outdoors or both – 

please tick (please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both x 

Mon 23:00 03:30 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

Ground Floor Café 

 

 

            

Tue 23:00 03:30 

            

Wed 23:00 03:30 State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 

refreshment (please read guidance note 5) 

An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday 

weekend, and the Thursday preceding Good Friday.  

 

An extra hour when British Summer Time commences.  

 

From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the end of 

permitted hours on New Years Day. 

            

Thur 23:00 03:30 

            

Fri 23:00 05:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to 

those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 

guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat 23:00 05:00 

            

Sun 23:00 03:30 

            

 

Page 34

Item 5Appendix 2,



J 
 

Supply of alcohol 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for 

consumption – please tick (please read 

guidance note 8)   

 Third floor event space 

 

The external area will be licensed from 12:00 

until 23:00 on Mondays to Sundays. This will 

be when events take place only. 

On the 

premises 
 

Off the 

premises 
 

Day Start Finish Both x 

Mon 22:00 03:00 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please 

read guidance note 5) 

An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday 

weekend, and the Thursday preceding Good Friday.  

 

An extra hour when British Summer Time commences.  

 

From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the end of 

permitted hours on New Years Day. 

            

Tue 22:00 03:00 

            

Wed 22:00 03:00 

            

Thur 22:00 03:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Fri 22:00 04:30 

            

Sat 22:00 04:30 

            

Sun 22:00 03:00 

            

 

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as 

designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the 

checklist at the end of the form): 

 

Name   Oliver Keenan Ryder 

Date of birth                                

 

 

 

 

Postcode  

Personal licence number (if known) 

 

Issuing licensing authority (if known) 

Salford City Council 

 

 

Page 35

Item 5Appendix 2,



 

K 
 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or 

matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 

children (please read guidance note 9). 

N/A 

 

L 
 

Hours premises are 

open to the public 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5) 

An extra hour on Sundays and Mondays on a Bank Holiday 

weekend, and the Thursday preceding Good Friday.  

 

An extra hour when British Summer Time commences.  

 

From the start of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the end of 

permitted hours on New Years Day. 

 

 

 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 00:00 24:00 

            

Tue 00:00 24:00 

            

Wed 00:00 24:00 

            Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be 

open to the public at different times from those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

 The hours not covered by the proposed licensable activities will be 

for tenants of the various units and their guests (all floors). 

 

 

The external area will be licensed from 12:00 until 23:00 on 

Mondays to Sundays. This will be when events take place only. 

Thur 00:00 24:00 

            

Fri 00:00 24:00 

            

Sat 00:00 24:00 

            

Sun 00:00 24:00 

            

 

 

Page 36

Item 5Appendix 2,



M  

 

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 

 

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10) 

As per current Premises Licence: 246056 
 
Entry to external events will be by ticket only, and there will be no sales of tickets 
at the premises so as to ensure that the number of guests is controlled. 
 
 

 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

As per current Premises Licence: 246056 
 

 

c) Public safety 

As per current Premises Licence: 246056 

 

When external events are taking place, access will be allowed to the internal toilet 

facilities and temporary facilities will also be provided. These will be checked 

regularly by members of staff.  

 

 

d) The prevention of public nuisance 

As per current Premises Licence: 246056 

 

Adequate litter bins will be placed around the external area during events and 

cleared away after the conclusion of the event. 

 

e) The protection of children from harm 

 
As per current Premises Licence: 246056 

 

Page 37

Item 5Appendix 2,



Checklist: 

Please tick to indicate agreement 

 

 

 

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. 

 

x 

 I have enclosed the plan of the premises. x 

 I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and 

others where applicable. 
x 

 I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be 

designated premises supervisor, if applicable. 
x 

 I understand that I must now advertise my application. x 

 

 

 

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will 

be rejected. 

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not 

a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I 

have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United 

Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online right to work 

checking service (please read note 15). 

x 

 

 

 

x 

 

     

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A 

PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO 

BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 

THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT 

LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE 

LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, 

ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE 

SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE 

KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE 

EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.  

 

 

Part 4 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 11) 

 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance 

note 12).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.  

 

 

Declaration 

• [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a 

partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I 

am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the 

entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject to a 

condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on 

of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I 

cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance 

note 15).       

 

• The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK 

(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing 

work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or 

Page 38

Item 5Appendix 2,



her proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to 

work check using the Home Office online right to work checking 

service which confirmed their right to work (please see note 15) 

    

Signature Licensing Legal Solicitors 

Date 8th February 2021 

Capacity Solicitors & Authorised Agents for the Applicant 

 

For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other 

authorised agent (please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please 

state in what capacity. 

 

Signature  

Date       

Capacity       

 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated 

with this application (please read guidance note 14) 

Licensing Legal Solicitors 

The Progress Centre 

Charlton Place 

Ardwick 

Post town Manchester Postcode M12 6HS 

Telephone number (if any)  

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39

Item 5Appendix 2,



Dispersal Policy 

 

 

Aim 

 

To effectively manage the dispersal of customers leaving the premises.  

 

 

Objectives 

 

1. Provide high level of visible information for delegates on transport and 

accommodation options.  

 

1.1 Information will be provided by website, marketing literature and orally.  

 

1.2 All literature will describe the transport or accommodation options available.  

 

 

2. Transport options will include pre-bookable taxi facility for leaving after 

an event.  

 

2.1 The Premises Licence holder will make arrangements with local taxi 

providers to have sufficient taxis available for the number of customers 

attending.  

 

2.2 Clear notices to be displayed giving details of local taxi companies which use 

the ring back scheme.  

 

 

3. Run down period starting one hour before close for music events. 

 

3.1 One hour before close, the sale of alcohol will cease and the music style will 

change to a reduced volume and lower tempo.  

 

3.2 One hour before close, house lights will gradually be turned up.  

 

3.3 During the run down period, soft drinks, teas and coffees to be served.  

 

3.4 Customers to be allowed to wait in the internal area to avoid congregating 

outside.  

 

 

4. Manage the movement of pedestrians away from the premises.  

 

4.1 All customers to be guided towards Charlton Place and then subsequently to 

Downing Street. 

 

4.2 Stewards will be positioned outside the premises to guide customers away   

from residential areas.  

 

Page 40

Item 5Appendix 2,



4.3 Free maps will be available for use by customers detailing preferred walking 

routes.  

 

4.4 Free lollipops to be provided to customers.  

 

4.5 Staff to remain in supervision of the outside areas until all customers have 

dispersed.  

 

4.6 Clear legible notices to be placed near the exits requesting customers to 

respect neighbours and to leave the premises and the area quickly and quietly. 

 

4.7 Staff to be vigilant to ensure that alcohol is not served to any person who is 

drunk.  

 

4.8 No person who is drunk to be allowed to enter the premises.  

 

4.9 Door staff/stewards to request any customers waiting outside the premises to 

move away from the area quickly and quietly.  

 

 

5. Collection of customers within the premises boundary and movement to 

destination.  

 

5.1 The car park area located within the boundary of the premises to be used for 

the purpose of transport collection after an event.  

 

 

6. Outside area to be cleaned. 

 

6.1 All litter shall be removed from the external area of the premises at close. 

 

6.2 Staff to ensure the outside area is left in a clean and tidy state. 

Page 41

Item 5Appendix 2,



 
SMOKING POLICY 

 
 
AIMS 
 
To minimise the impact of smokers on other premises within the locality. 
Encourage customers smoking outside the premises to behave in a responsible manner. 
Ensure that no litter is created by smokers. 
Ensure a well managed external smoking area. 
Ensure that non-smokers are affected as little as possible. 
 
 
 
Objectives 
 
The smoking area will be supervised by staff at all times it is in use after 23:00.  
Smokers will be allowed out of the premises and encouraged to smoke in a designated 
area, situated on Charlton Place.  
Smokers will be requested by door staff to smoke only in the designated area.  
Smokers will be requested by door staff to act responsibly and respect the right of any 
neighbours to a quiet environment. 
Smokers misbehaving will be informed they will not be allowed to stay outside otherwise 
no further admission to the premises and will be asked to leave or to come inside the 
premises. 
Litter bins will be available in the defined area. 
Staff will ensure that the smoking area is cleared of smoking debris at close each day. 
Notices will be displayed inside the premises that the premises are a no-smoking 
environment and that a smoking policy is in force. 
The location of the smoking area shall be clearly defined on the location plan forming 
part of this application. 
 

Page 42

Item 5Appendix 2,



Drugs Policy 

 

Introduction  

The overall aim is full compliance with The Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 and the 

Licensing Act 2003; as well as making a real contribution towards tackling the 

problem of drugs.  

 

Drug Prevention Policy 

Our aim is to be a drugs-free premises and we will work towards achieving this 

through:- 

 Communication with customers 

 Carrying out random searches 

 Providing employees with guidance, information, training and procedures 

to assist them in identifying drugs, the effects of taking them and 

appropriate action 

 Complying with legal responsibilities 

 Working with industry bodies to promote the drug prevention message 

 Working closely with the Local Authority and Greater Manchester Police. 

 

Responsibility 

The implementation of the Company procedures is the responsibility of the 

General Manager. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH THE MISUSE OF DRUGS 

Page 43

Item 5Appendix 2,



Manager’s Guidelines  

The circumstances of drug possession will vary. Some people will be carrying 

drugs for their own personal use; others will have set out to make as much money 

as possible from buying and selling drugs. 

 

This procedure is to assist in taking the correct action in each set of 

circumstances, and takes into account not only the law, but also what is safe and 

practical.  

 

We will liaise with Greater Manchester Police to determine acceptable and 

appropriate courses of action regarding dealing with drugs. 

 

Drugs on Entry 

 Customers should be advised that taking drugs into the premises is not 

acceptable 

 Customers may be asked to agree to a search as a condition of entry 

 If drugs are found during a search the customer will be detained and the 

Police will be called 

 If anything is found that appears to be a drug (e.g. powder, tablet, herbal 

substance, liquid or tab) the customer should be detained and the Police 

called. 

 Any customer who refuses to be searched must not be permitted to gain 

entry. 

Powers of Search  

 Only the Police have the power to search someone without their consent 

 A customer’s consent must be gained by our employees in order for a 

search of their person or belongings to take place 

 Even if staff make a lawful arrest (i.e. if they are in possession of Class A or 

Class B drugs) there is no automatic power of search 

 

Drugs Within The Premises 

Page 44

Item 5Appendix 2,



 If staff see a customer who appears to be in possession of drugs they 

should take them to a private room 

 Search the customer if they give consent 

 Always have a second member of management or a Door Supervisor 

present. If you find anything that appears to be Class A, B or C the drugs 

must be placed in an envelope and sealed 

 The envelope should be signed by the finder and suspect and must be 

witnessed by a member of the Management 

 Enter the details of the drugs found in the Drugs Register 

 Detain the customer until the Police arrive. 

Drugs Register 

 All drugs found must be recorded in the Drugs Register 

 The Drugs Register must be made available upon request by an Officer of 

GMP,  and must be monitored, checked and signed regularly by 

Management 

 A Drug Disposal Policy should be discussed and agreed with local Police. 

Any item seized and booked into the Register and stored in the safe, must 

be reported to the Police as soon as reasonably practical and in any case 

within 24 hours.  

Drugs Safe 

 A safe (or secure cupboard) for the purpose of storing confiscated drugs 

will be maintained on the premises 

 There will be only one key to access the safe which is to be held by the 

Duty Manager 

 The local Police will attend on request of the Management to collect and 

safely dispose of the contents of the Drugs Safe, as above. Any drugs 

found must be disposed of within the law, by surrender to the Police as 

soon as reasonably practical and in any case within 24 hours of 

confiscation.  

Page 45

Item 5Appendix 2,



This page is intentionally left blank



2/17/2021 Email - Premises Licensing - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk/inbox/id/AAMkADcwNzQ4MTkyLWUzOWEtNDViZS1iMDUwLWVhZThiMzNlY… 1/6

Re: Premises Licence (new) 255611/AM2: The Progress Centre and Car park, Progress
Centre, Charlton Place, Manchester, M12 6HS, (Ardwick ward)

Amna Abdullatif <cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk>
Tue 16/02/2021 19:54
To:  Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk>

Hi,

Can I just state my objec�on to this.  The area this is being proposed in is a residen�al area and I don't
think any residents would appreciate the noise or impact of  a club or an outdoor events area in this
loca�on. 

Thanks,

Amna

Cllr Amna Abdulla�f
Labour Member for Ardwick
M +
cllr.amna.abdulla�f@manchester.gov.uk

From: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 9, 2021 12:17 PM 
Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255611/AM2: The Progress Centre and Car park, Progress Centre, Charlton Place,
Manchester, M12 6HS, (Ardwick ward)
 
Date: 9 February 2021 

Licensing Act 2003(Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005 

Dear Sir / Madam 
 
I am writing to notify you that a licence application has been received for premises in Ardwick
ward as follows: 
 
Application Type: Premises Licence (new) 
 
Reference: 255611/AM2 
 
Premises: The Progress Centre Car park, Progress Centre, Charlton Place, Manchester, M12
6HS 
 
Applicant: Progress MCR Limited 
 
General description of premises as given by the applicant: 
 
Ground Floor: café for Late Night Refreshment. 
 
Third Floor: music & event space. 
 
External car park area to be used for events. The hours for the external area will be 12:00 until
23:00 when events take place. Page 47

Item 5Appendix 3,



This page is intentionally left blank



Schedule of Licence Conditions 
 

Conditions consistent with the operating schedule Agreed Proposed by 

1. CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, 
capable of providing pictures of evidential quality in all lighting 
conditions, particularly head and shoulders recognition. 

2. Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the 
premises, fire exits and all areas where the sale / supply of 
alcohol occurs. The Premises Licence holder must ensure at all 
times a DPS or appointed member of staff is capable and 
competent at downloading CCTV footage in a recordable format 
on to DVD for officers of Responsible Authorities.  

3. Equipment must be maintained in good working order and be 
correctly time and date stamped. Any hard drive system used 
must be capable of retaining images for a minimum of 31 days 
on a roll-over basis.  

4. A staff member who is conversant with the operation of the 
CCTV system shall be present on the premises at all times 
when they are open to the public and must be able to 
produce/download/burn CCTV images upon request by a Police 
Officer or an Authorised Officer of the Licensing Authority. 

5. An Incident Log (which may be electronically recorded) shall be 
kept at the premises for at least six months, and made available 
on request to GMP or an Authorised Officer of the Licensing 
Authority. 

6. All drinks shall only be sold in a container made from non-
splintering plastic, paper or shatterproof glass during any dance 
or DJ-led events. 

7. Any persons entering or re-entering the premises may be 
subject to a random search by an SIA-trained member of staff. 
On DJ-led events all persons entering the premises will be 
searched. Any person refusing to be searched will not be 
allowed entry to the premises.  

8. Door Staff to be engaged at the premises from 60 minutes 
before opening until 30 minutes after close whenever the 
premises are open beyond midnight. The number of door staff 
shall be such as is determined by a risk assessment by 
management each day, at the ratio of 1:100 (but with a minimum 
of 2 on the door).  

9. 2 Door staff positioned at the front door will wear body cams at 
all times they are on duty, and will be in possession of knife 
wands for use during searches. 

10. When employed at the premises, all door staff will wear high-
visibility jackets, both when inside and outside the premises for 
DJ-led events, and outside only for private, corporate and/or 
brand-led events. 

N/A 

 

Applicant 

Page 49

Item 5Appendix 4,



Schedule of Licence Conditions 
 

11. The Drugs Policy agreed by the Licensing & Out of Hours Team 
is attached to this Licence and is a Condition of the Premises 
Licence.  

12. Any person who appears to be drunk shall not be permitted to 
enter the premises.  

13. A minimum of 14 days’ notice shall be given to Greater 
Manchester Police in respect of any events that are organised 
by an external promoter, including full details of the nature of the 
event and the promoter. 

14. All fire-fighting equipment shall be maintained in accordance 
with the necessary certification and maintenance requirements.  

15. Public Liability Insurance shall be maintained in respect of the 
premises.  

16. Prior to opening to the public, the premises will be available for 
inspection by Greater Manchester Fire Authority.  

17. An adequate fire detection service and appropriate emergency 
lighting system are to be installed at the premises.  

18. Staff shall make regular checks of the toilet facilities.  

19. The premises shall have a comprehensive emergency 
procedure, and Management shall ensure that all staff are fully 
trained in the safe handling of emergencies.  

20. The Dispersal Policy agreed by the Licensing & Out of Hours 
Team is attached to this Licence and is a Condition of the 
Premises Licence.  

21. No noise shall emanate from the premises, nor vibration be 
transmitted through the structure of the premises, which gives 
rise to a public nuisance.  

22. All doors and windows shall remain closed during regulated 
entertainment except for access and egress or in case of 
emergency. 

23. Notices shall be placed at the exits to the premises asking 
customers to leave the premises quickly and quietly.  

24. There shall be no disposal of glassware or containers outside 
the premises between 22:00 and 07:00.  

25. The Smoking Policy agreed by the Licensing & Out of Hours 
Team is attached to this Licence and is a Condition of the 
Premises Licence.  

26. The area outside the premises will be kept clean and tidy, and 
staff will tidy away any litter at the conclusion of trading. 

27. There shall be regular and adequate refuse collections from the 
premises.  

28. Local taxi numbers shall be made available for customers, to 

Page 50

Item 5Appendix 4,



Schedule of Licence Conditions 
 

assist in procuring a taxi.  

29. Adequate rubbish bins will be placed outside of the premises 
and cleared away when the premises close. 

30. The Challenge 25 Policy shall be implemented in full and 
appropriate identification shall be sought from any person who 
appeared under the age of 25. The only acceptable forms of 
identification shall be passport, photo driving licence and those 
carrying the PASS logo.  

31. Staff training shall include the Challenge 25 policy and its 
operation. The training shall be given to a new member of staff 
before they commence employment, and all staff will be 
retrained at least annually.     

32. Notices shall be displayed inside the premises warning that it is 
illegal to purchase – or attempt to purchase – alcohol under the 
age of 18.  

33. The external area will be licenced for events only.  

34. Entry to external events will be by ticket only, and there will be 
no sales of tickets at the premises so as to ensure that the 
number of guests is controlled. 
 

35. When external events are taking place, access will be allowed to 

the internal toilet facilities and temporary facilities will also be 

provided. These will be checked regularly by members of staff.  

36. Adequate litter bins will be placed around the external area 
during events and cleared away after the conclusion of the event 

 

  

   

 

Page 51

Item 5Appendix 4,



This page is intentionally left blank



Anthony Horne <  
Mon 15/03/2021 17:24 

To  

 Amna Abdullatif 

Cc: 

•  Premises Licensing; 

•  Ashia Maqsood; 

•  Stephanie Williams < 
•  

 TEN document.docx 

PYAQuarries.pdf 
 
Good afternoon Councillor – I refer to your e-mail below. 
  
I have attempted a number of calls this afternoon as suggested, but unfortunately to no avail. 
  
Assuming that the matter now needs to proceed to a Hearing, please find attached the following:- 
  

1.       Details of Temporary Event Notices issued last summer; and 
2.       Case Law. 

  
Ashia – please ensure that the attached are added to the Agenda, and let us know when the date for 
the Hearing has been fixed. 
  
Thanks and regards. 
  

Anthony Horne  (Director) 

 

Page 53

Item 5Appendix 5,



The Progress Centre – Temporary Event Schedule 2020 

 

Date 
 

Times Comment / Incidents 

15.08.2020 14:00 – 23:00 
 

No incidents / complaints 

22.08.2020 14:00 – 23:00 
 

No incidents / complaints 

29.08.2020 
 

14:00 – 23:00 No incidents / complaints 

30.08.2020 
 

14:00 – 23:00 No incidents / complaints 

05.09.2020 12:00 – 23:00 
 

No incidents / complaints 

12.09.2020 14:00 – 23:00 
 

No incidents / complaints 

19.09.2020 14:00 – 23:00 
 

No incidents / complaints 

26.09.2020 
 
 

14:00 – 23:00 
 

No incidents / complaints 

 

P
age 54

Item
 5

A
ppendix 5,



Page 55

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 56

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 57

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 58

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 59

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 60

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 61

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 62

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 63

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 64

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 65

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 66

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 67

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 68

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 69

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 70

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 71

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 72

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 73

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 74

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 75

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 76

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 77

Item 5Appendix 5,



Page 78

Item 5Appendix 5,



From: Amna Abdullatif [mailto:cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk] 
Sent: 11 March 2021 15:25 
To: Anthony Horne <  
Subject: Re: The Progress Centre, Charlton Place, Manchester M12 6HS 

  

Hi, 
  
My number is:  

  
Just to note I am in meetings so I'm only free between 1pm-5pm on Monday. 
  
Have a good day, 
  
Amna 

  
Cllr Amna Abdullatif 
Labour Member for Ardwick 

 

cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk 

 
From: Anthony Horne < > 
Sent: Thursday, March 11, 2021 2:35 PM 
To: Amna Abdullatif <cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk> 
Cc: Stephanie Williams <  
Subject: RE: The Progress Centre, Charlton Place, Manchester M12 6HS 

  
Good afternoon Councillor – thank you for your e-mail. 
  
If you supply me with contact details, I will call you on Monday. 
  
Regards. 
  

Anthony Horne  (Director) 

  
  
From: Amna Abdullatif [mailto:cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk] 
Sent: 10 March 2021 19:55 
To: Stephanie Williams <  
Cc: Anthony Horne <  
Subject: Re: The Progress Centre, Charlton Place, Manchester M12 6HS 

  

Hi, 
  
Thank you for your email.  
  
I appreciate your response but it hasn't alleviated my concerns.  
  

Page 79

Item 5Appendix 5,

mailto:cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk
mailto:cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk
mailto:cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk


I'm happy to discuss over the phone and get a sense of how this proposal won't impact 
residents.  I am busy this week, but happy to discuss on Monday after 11am.  
  
Take care, 
  
Amna 

 
From: Stephanie Williams  
Sent: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 1:59 PM 
To: Amna Abdullatif <cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk> 
Cc: Anthony Horne <  
Subject: FW: The Progress Centre, Charlton Place, Manchester M12 6HS 

  
Dear Councillor Abdullatif 
 
Further to my e-mail of the 17th February 2021 I would be grateful for a response. 
  
There have been no Representations from any other party, including local residents. 
  
Kind regards, 
  
Stephanie 
  
Stephanie Williams 
(Practice Manager) 
 

Page 80

Item 5Appendix 5,

mailto:cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk


Stephanie Williams < > 
Wed 03/03/2021 14:46 

To : Premises Licensing 

Cc: Anthony Horne <  

246056 LIC.pdf 
 
Please see below an e-mail sent to Cllr Abdullatif on the 17th February 2021. We would be grateful if 
this would be filed with the papers regarding this application. We have not had a response to this e-
mail. 
  
Kind regards, 
  
Stephanie Williams 

 
 (Practice Manager) 
 
  
  
  
  
From: Stephanie Williams 
Sent: 17 February 2021 14:29  
 
To: 'cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk' <cllr.amna.abdullatif@manchester.gov.uk> 
Subject: The Progress Centre, Charlton Place, Manchester M12 6HS 
Importance: High 
  
  
Dear Cllr Abdullatif, 
  
We act on behalf of the Applicant for the above Premises Licence, and have today received a copy of 
your Representation sent to Manchester City Council. 
  
I have attached a copy of the existing Premises Licence which was granted in June 2020. This 
application received no residential objections even though later hours were originally applied for. 
These hours were reduced as part of an agreement reached with the Licensing & Out of Hours Team 
at the time. 
  
The current application merely seeks to add an external area to the Premises Licence, and this area 
will trade shorter hours than the rest of the Licence currently permits (12:00 until 23:00 Mondays to 
Sundays). 
  
I hope this satisfies your concerns in respect of residents in your area, and would be grateful if you 
could reconsider your Representation in light of the above. 
  
If you wish to discuss this further, then please don’t hesitate to contact either Anthony Horne or 
myself. 
  
Kind regards, 
 Stephanie  
 

Page 81

Item 5Appendix 5,



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

Item 5Appendix 6,
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council 
Report for Resolution 

 
Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Panel – 06 April 2021 
 
Subject: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS - App 

ref: Premises Licence (new) 255581 
 
Report of: Director of Planning, Building Control & Licensing   
 

 
Summary 
 
Application for the grant of a premises licence which has attracted objections. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Panel determine the application. 
 

 
Wards Affected: Fallowfield 
 

Manchester Strategy Outcomes Summary of the contribution to the 
strategy 

A thriving and sustainable City: 
supporting a diverse and distinctive 
economy that creates jobs and 
opportunities 

Licensed premises provide a key role as an 
employer, in regeneration, and in attracting 
people to the city. The efficient processing of 
applications as well as effective decision 
making in respect of them, plays an essential 
role in enabling businesses to thrive and 
maximise contribution to the economy of the 
region and sub-region. 

A highly skilled city: world class and 
home grown talent sustaining the 
city’s economic success 

An effective Licensing regime will enable 
growth in our City by supporting businesses 
who promote the Licensing Objectives. 

A progressive and equitable city: 
making a positive contribution by 
unlocking the potential of our 
communities 

 

The Licensing process provides for local 
residents and other interested parties to make 
representations in relation to licensing 
applications. Representations have to be 
directly related to the licensing objectives. 

A liveable and low carbon city: a 
destination of choice to live, visit 
and work. 

 

An effective licensing system supports and 
enables growth and employment in our City 
with neighbourhoods that provide amenities 
suitable to the surrounding communities.  

A connected city: world class  

Page 89

Item 6



infrastructure and connectivity to 
drive growth 

 
Full details are in the body of the report, along with any implications for: 
 
Equal Opportunities Policy 
Risk Management 
Legal Considerations 
 

 
Financial Consequences – Revenue 
 
None 
 
Financial Consequences – Capital 
 
None 
 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name: Fraser Swift 
Position: Principal Licensing Officer  
Telephone: 0161 234 1176 
E-mail: f.swift@manchester.gov.uk 

 
Name: 

 
Bryan Johnson 

Position: Technical Licensing Officer  
Telephone: 0161 231 1248 
E-mail: premises.licensing@manchester.gov.uk  

 

 
Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 

 Manchester City Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 - 2021 

 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, April 2017 

 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 

 Any further documentary submissions by any party to the hearing

Page 90

Item 6

mailto:f.swift@manchester.gov.uk
mailto:premises.licensing@manchester.gov.uk


1. Introduction 

1.1 On 08 February 2021, an application for the grant of a Premises Licence 
under s17 of the Licensing Act 2003 was made in respect of Dixy Chicken, 
Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS in the Fallowfield ward of 
Manchester. A location map and photograph of the premises is attached at 
Appendix 1. 

1.2 A 28-day public consultation exercise was undertaken in accordance with 
Licensing Act 2003 regulations; requiring the application to be advertised by 
the displaying of a blue notice at or on the premises, a notice published in a 
newspaper or similar circulating in the local area, and details of the application 
published on the Council’s website. 

1.3 Representations may be made for or against an application during the 
consultation period. To be ‘relevant’ and, therefore, able to be taken into 
account in determining the application, they must be about the likely effect of 
the grant of the premises licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
Where representations are made by persons who are not a responsible 
authority, they must not be frivolous or vexatious. 

1.4 Relevant representations have been received in respect of this application and 
so it must be determined by a Licensing Hearing Panel in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution. 

2. The Application 

2.1 A copy of the application is attached at Appendix 2. 

2.2 The applicant is Mr Mohammed Zubair. 

2.3 The description of the premises given by the applicant is:  
‘The premises currently operates as a Dixy Chicken Franchise from 11:00am 
to 23:00pm, mainly serving burgers, grilled chicken, pizza, desserts and non-
alcoholic drinks.’   
 

2.4 The licensable activities applied for: 
 Provision of late-night refreshment: 
 Mon to Sun 11.00pm to 3.00am 
 (Telephone/Online orders for home delivery only between 1.00am to 3.00am) 
 
2.4.1 In accordance with the Live Music Act 2012 and Deregulation Act 2015, 

performances of Live Music and Recorded Music between the hours of 0800 
and 2300 hours have been deregulated and so should not be regarded as 
licensable activities for the purposes of this application. 

2.4.2 Any further details provided relating to any of the individual licensable 
activities are specified on the application form at Appendix 2. 

2.5 Activities unsuitable for children  

Page 91

Item 6



2.5.1 The applicant has not highlighted any adult entertainment or services, 
activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the premises 
that may give rise to concern in respect of children. 

2.6 Steps to promote the licensing objectives 

2.6.1 The applicant proposes to promote the licensing objectives by taking the steps 
identified in the operating schedule. 

2.6.2 These steps must be translated into conditions by the licensing authority to be 
included in any granted premises licence, unless the conditions are modified 
by the Panel following consideration of relevant representations. These 
conditions are set out in the Schedule of Conditions at Appendix 4. 

3. Relevant Representations 

3.1 A total of 22 relevant representations were received in respect of the 
application (Appendix 3). The personal details of all members of the public 
have been redacted. Original copies of these representations will be available 
to the Panel at the hearing. 

Responsible Authorities:  

 MCC Licensing and Out of Hours Compliance Team;  

 Licensing Authority 
 

Other Persons:  

 Residents (x20) 
 

3.2 Summary of the representations: 
 

Party Grounds of representation Recommends 

Licensing 
and Out of 
Hours 
Compliance 

LOOH compliance have submitted a 
representation against the application on the 
grounds of the prevention of public nuisance. 
The premises is located within the Fallowfield 
Cumulative Impact Zone (which is currently 
subject to review). It is of concern to LOOH 
Compliance that the licensable activities and 
operating timings applied for could, potentially, 
have a negative impact upon those residents 
residing within the immediate and nearby 
vicinity of the premises. To off-set the likelihood 
of public nuisance issues arising, as a direct 
consequence of the proposed/applied for 
licensable activities at the premises, LOOH 
Compliance are requesting the imposition of a 
range of extra conditions on to any 
subsequently granted premises licence. 

Grant with 
conditions 

Page 92

Item 6



Licensing 
Authority 

The Licensing Authority has submitted a 
representation against the application on the 
grounds of prevention of public nuisance. 
Although the Licensing Authority recognises 
that the Fallowfield Cumulative Impact Zone 
policy is currently undergoing review (and, 
therefore, consequently cannot be directly 
applied in this instance) it is still relevant to 
take cumulative impact into account when 
granting a premises licence, particularly where 
there already exists a proliferation of similar 
types of licensed premises within a confined 
geographical location. 

The Licensing Authority is not convinced that 
the granting of the application would ensure 
that the licensing objectives would be upheld 
within the locality of the premises, as it is felt 
that the application does not provide the 
required assurances or is an acceptable 
improvement on the previous premises licence 
application (as was submitted/applied for by 
the same applicant in 2020, and rejected at 
hearing in August of that year). 

Consequently so, the Licensing Authority is 
requesting that the application be rejected in 
line with the current City Council Licensing 
Policy (re: ‘4.13 However, where all the above 
steps are not considered appropriate and 
sufficient to promote the licensing objectives by 
the authority, the policy is to refuse the 
application.’).  

Refuse 

Residents 
(x20) 

There have been 20 valid representations 
served against the application by local 
residents. Collectively, in their own opinion, 
they are objecting to the application on the 
basis of all Four Licensing Objectives likely to 
being further undermined within their local 
area, should the application be granted. 

In their representations numerous, repeated 
references have been made by the private 
residents to existing/ongoing antisocial 
behaviour affecting their area: 
drunkenness/drunken behaviour by groups of 
students, littering (i.e. food packaging and 
waste food materials dropped on the public 
highway and in private gardens etc., with waste 

Refuse 

Page 93

Item 6



products/materials from the applicants 
premises being found amongst such 
waste/litter), noise nuisance (i.e. noise 
generated by delivery vehicles, delivery drivers 
knocking/ringing doorbells loudly on customers 
premises front doors, shouting/loud 
conversations by groups of people frequenting 
existing licensed premises etc.).  

It is collectively regarded by all those private 
residents (who have submitted representations 
against the application) that the addition of 
another Late Night Refreshment premises 
would/will only serve to further add to, 
exacerbate and make worse the existing issues 
relating to antisocial behaviour, littering and 
noise nuisance that are affecting their local 
area. Consequently so, the refusal of the 
application is requested by each private 
resident who has submitted a representation 
against the application. 

3.3 Any conditions proposed by objectors are set out in the Schedule of 
Conditions at Appendix 4. 

4. Key Policies and Considerations 

4.1 Legal Considerations 

4.1.1 Hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 operate under the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005. 

4.2 New Information 

4.2.1 In accordance with Regulation 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005, the authority may take into account documentary or other 
information produced by a party in support of their application, representations 
or notice either before the hearing or, with the consent of all parties, at the 
hearing. 

4.3 Hearsay Evidence 

4.3.1 The Panel may accept hearsay evidence and it will be a matter for the Panel 
to attach what weight to it that they consider appropriate. Hearsay evidence is 
evidence of something that a witness neither saw nor heard, but has heard or 
read about. 

4.4 The Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 

4.4.1 The Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 is provided for all 
parties involved in licensing. It is a key medium for promoting best practice, 

Page 94

Item 6



ensuring consistent application of licensing powers across England and Wales 
and for promoting fairness, equal treatment and proportionality.  

4.4.2 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a 
licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State under section 182. The Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing 
authorities to that extent. However, the Guidance cannot anticipate every 
possible scenario or set of circumstances that may arise and, as long as 
licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they may depart 
from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.  

4.4.3 Departure from the Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, 
and the reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when 
considering the lawfulness and merits of any decision taken. 

4.5 Manchester Statement of Licensing Policy 

4.5.1 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a 
licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ its statement of licensing policy. 

4.5.2 The Licensing Policy sets out the vision the licensing authority has for the 
regulation of licensed premises throughout Manchester and outlines the 
standards expected in order to ensure the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in the city. The Panel may depart from the policies should it 
consider doing so would benefit the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
Reasons are to be given for any such departure from the Policy. 

4.5.3 Section 4 of the Policy (Operation of the Policy) sets out how the Licensing 
Policy is intended to be used in practice for licence applications and licensed 
premises. 

4.5.4 Relevant to this application and the grounds of the representations made, the 
Panel are recommended to have regard to the following sections of the Policy: 

 Section 5: Special Policy Area 

 The premises is located within the following special policy area: 

 Fallowfield and Wilmslow Road 
 The effect of the Special Policy is that the Council will refuse applications for a 

new Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate, or variation of an existing 
licence or certificate, whenever it receives relevant representation, unless an 
applicant can demonstrate why the operation of the premises involved will not 
add to the cumulative impact already being experienced. In relation to 
variations, this includes any variation that seeks to add a licensable activity, 
increase the capacity/size of a licensed premises, or extend the hours for 
licensable activities, but will usually exclude minor variations. 

 

Page 95

Item 6



 Closing time Approach 

Hot food 
Takeaway 
premises 

All Strong presumption against. 

A genuinely exceptional case would 
need to be shown. The reasons for the 
exception should be shown in the 
operating schedule, and must 
demonstrate that there will be no harm 
to the licensing objectives, including 
from departing customers. 

 The policy also sets out particular measures it expects operators to pay 
special attention to in order to ensure their operation will not add to the 
problems within this area. Operators are not required to do so, but where the 
authority’s discretion is engaged, any applications that fail to address all 
appropriate measures may be refused or have conditions applied to comply 
with the policy measures. 

 Section 6: What we aim to encourage 
 This section identifies certain types of venues and initiatives the licensing 

authority aims to encourage in order to promote an inclusive evening and 
night-time economy not simply focused on the consumption of alcohol. We 
aim to encourage: 

 Premises that will extend the diversity of entertainment and attract a 
wider range of participants 

 Live music, especially original material, which will provide a range of 
live performances and styles of music, provided that such 
entertainment does not undermine the licensing objectives 

 National cultural institutions, global sports events and cultural festivals 

 Non-drink-led premises, including restaurants, cafes, theatres and 
cinemas 

 Communication and integration with local residents and businesses 
through licensees consulting with those in the local area prior to an 
application 

 Participation in Pubwatches, off licence forums and other crime-
reduction partnerships 

 Engagement with the NITENET radio scheme and DISC secure 
information sharing platform by city centre venues through the Cityco 
Manchester Business Crime Reduction Partnership 

 Designing out crime in the layout of the premises 

 Section 7: Local factors   
 This section sets out key issues that applicants are expected to take into 

account relevant to the individual characteristics of the premises when 
preparing their operating schedule and address any local factors relevant to 
their premises.  

Page 96

Item 6



 Having regard to the grounds of the representations made, the Panel are 
recommended to have regard to the following Factors: 

 Evidence of pre-existing problems in the area 

 Proximity of takeaways and off-licences to nightlife entertainment areas  

 Consistency with relevant Council strategies 

 The proximity of the premises to local residents and other local 
businesses, particularly in relation to the potential for nuisance  

 Ability to clean and maintain the street scene 

 Section 8: Manchester’s standards to promote the licensing objectives 
 This section identifies the standards that the licensing authority expects of 

licensed premises in Manchester. It is recognised that not all standards will be 
appropriate to apply in every situation to every premises, and applicants are 
not obliged to include all standards in their operating schedule. The degree to 
which standards would be appropriate is expected to be proportionate to the 
risk posed against the promotion of the licensing objectives having regard to 
the individual circumstances of the premises. The standards are not 
exhaustive and the licensing authority will have regard to any relevant issues 
raised in any representation that may fall outside them.   

MS2 Effective general management of the premises  

MS6 Provide a Duty of Care for intoxicated or vulnerable customers and 

medical emergencies  
MS8 Prevent noise nuisance from the premises 
MS10 Operate effective cleansing arrangements, including ensuring the 

premises and surrounding area are kept clean and free of litter, and 

adequate arrangements for the secure and responsible storage of 

refuse 
MS11   Ensure the wellbeing of children on the premises 

 Section 9: Alcohol delivery services 
 This section sets out specific provisions for alcohol delivery services to be 

considered in conjunction with relevant standards from Section 8 of the Policy. 
 
 Section 10: Adult entertainment (including striptease, nudity and other 

entertainment of a sexual nature) 

 This section sets out specific considerations in respect of applications to 
provide adult entertainment, including entertainment of a sexual nature e.g. 
nudity, striptease and lap dancing. 

 
 Section 11: The use of tables and chairs on the public highway 
 This section provides that the operation of any areas on the public highway 

licensed for tables and chairs should be considered with regard to all relevant 
Standards set out in Section 8 of the Policy. 

 
 Section 12: Premises Licences for large-scale public events 
 This section sets out particular expectations regarding large scale public 

events, given the specific associated risks. 
 
5.   Conclusion 

Page 97

Item 6



5.1   A licensing authority must carry out its functions under this Act (“licensing 
functions”) with a view to promoting the licensing objectives: 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety; 

 the prevention of public nuisance; and 

 the protection of children from harm. 

5.2   In considering the matter, the Panel should take into account any 
representations or objections that have been received from responsible 
authorities or other persons, and representations made by the applicant or 
premises user as the case may be. In reaching the decision, regard must also 
be had to relevant provisions of the national guidance and the Council’s 
licensing policy statement. 

5.3   Having regard to the representations, the Panel must take such of the steps 
set out below that it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives: 

a)  To grant the licence subject to: 
i. the conditions consistent with the operating schedule 

accompanying the application, which the Panel may modify 
to such extent as they consider appropriate, and 

ii. any mandatory conditions that must be included in the 
licence; 

b)  To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates; 

c)  To refuse to specify the person proposed in the application as the 
designated premises supervisor; 

d)  To reject the application. 

5.4   The conditions consistent with the operating schedule may be modified to alter 
or omit any of them or to add any new condition, including restricting the times 
at which licensable activities authorised by the licence can take place. 

5.5   All licensing determinations should be considered on the individual merits of 
the application. 

5.6   The Panel’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to 
what it is intended to achieve. Findings on any issues of fact should be on the 
balance of probability. 

5.7   It is important that a licensing authority should give comprehensive reasons 
for its decisions in anticipation of any appeals. Failure to give adequate 
reasons could itself give rise to grounds for an appeal.  

5.8 The Panel is asked to determine the application.

 

Page 98

Item 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dixy Chicken 

Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS 

 

 

 

Premises Licensing 

Manchester City Council 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018. Ordnance 
Survey100019568. 

 

 

 
Page 99

Item 6Appendix 1,



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PREMISE NAME: Dixy Chicken 

PREMISE ADDRESS:  Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS 

WARD:  Fallowfield 

HEARING DATE:  6th April 2021 

 

Page 100

Item 6Appendix 1,



 

  Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003  

  

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST  

  

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you are 

completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your 

answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary.  

  

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

  

  

I/We       MOHAMMED ZUBAIR   

 

         (Insert name(s) of applicant)   

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 

described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the 

relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003  

  

Part 1 – Premises details  

    

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description   

 

Dixy Chicken Fallowfield    

5a Wilbraham Road 

Post town        Manchester Postcode      M14 6JS   

  

Telephone number at premises (if any)          0161 224 5577 

Non-domestic rateable value of premises  £      10,000 

  

Part 2 - Applicant details  

  

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as        Please tick as appropriate  

  

a)  an individual or individuals *     please complete section (A) 

b)  a person other than an individual *    
 

  

Page 101

Item 6Appendix 2,



 

i as a limited company/limited liability   please complete section (B) partnership  

ii as a partnership (other than limited   please complete section (B) liability)  

iii as an unincorporated association or   please complete section (B)   iv 

 other (for example a statutory corporation)   please complete section (B) 

c)  a recognised club   please complete section (B)  

d) a charity   please complete section (B)  

e) the proprietor of an educational establishment   please complete section (B)  

f) a health service body   please complete section (B)  

g) a person who is registered under Part 2 of the   please complete section (B)  

  

  

  

ga)  

  

Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an 

independent hospital in Wales  

  

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of  

Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008  

(within the meaning of that Part) in an independent 
hospital in England  

  

  

  

  

 

    

  

  

please complete section (B) 

h)  the chief officer of police of a police force in 

England and Wales  
   please complete section (B) 

  

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one box 

below):      

  

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the  

 premises for licensable activities; or I am making the application pursuant to a   

  statutory function or    a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s 

prerogative   

  

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)  

  

Mr    Mrs    Miss    Ms   

        

Other Title (for 

example, Rev)  

       

  

Surname First names Zubair Mohammed 

             

Date of birth     I am 18 years old or over    Please tick yes  

Nationality           

 

Current residential 

address if different from 

premises address  

Post town         Postcode         

Daytime contact telephone number        

  

Page 102

Item 6Appendix 2,



 

E-mail address  

       

(optional)  

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work 

checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see 

note 15 for information)  

  

           N/A 

  

  

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)  

  

Mr    Mrs    Miss    Ms   

        

Other Title (for 

example, Rev)  

       

  

Surname First names  

             

Date of birth                                 I am 18 years old or over    Please tick yes  

Nationality           

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work 

checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: (please see 

note 15 for information)  

  

            

  

       

Current residential 

address if different from 

premises address  

Post town          Postcode         

Daytime contact telephone number         

E-mail address  

(optional)  
       

  

  

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS  

  

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where appropriate please 

give any registered number.  In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than 

a body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.  

  

Name  

       

Page 103

Item 6Appendix 2,



 

Address        

Registered number (where applicable)        

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)  

       

Telephone number (if any)         

E-mail address (optional)        

  

Part 3 Operating Schedule  

 DD  MM  YYYY  

When do you want the premises licence to start?   

  

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, 

 DD  MM  YYYY when do you want it to end?   

  

  

  

       We currently operate as a Dixy Chicken Franchise from 1100:00am to 23:00pm, mainly serving burgers, 

grilled chicken, pizza, desserts and non-alcoholic drinks.   

We would like to extend our operational times from 23:00 to 03:00am Monday-Sunday. We would like to 

trade from 11pm-1am instore available when normality returns, from 1am-3am we will be doing deliveries via 

3rd party app uber and Deliveroo. The reason for this proposed variation is that we have noticed a number of 

restaurants within close vicinity, in Fallowfield and Rusholme area that are open until 5:00am. Due to Covid-

19 premises have to be closed from 11pm, which they can carry on doing deliveries. Because of our timing we 

cannot do deliveries from dixy Fallowfield after 11am and we have started to struggle a lot from the pandemic. 

The footfall in Fallowfield has dropped dramatically. Therefore, we believe this proposed timing is reasonable. 

Under our current operational hours, we have not experienced any issues or complaints with trading from local 

residents, council, police and environmental health. In additional to this, the management team of dixy 

Fallowfield, have extensive experience of managing a late licence, as they have done so previously with 

another business down the road: dixy chicken (Rusholme). Therefore, it is unlikely we will experience any 

issues during longer operational hours and are able to control for factors mentioned in section M effectively.   

Finally, this area is highly populated with students and this proposed timing will help meet local demand for 

fast food, and ultimately help our business thrive in sales and profit. With no students and the footfall dropped 

in rate. This has affected our sales and profits by an enormous amount  

  

We are aware there is a special policy in Fallowfield, and therefore we have strategies in places to help support 

this policy (see section M). It is unlikely for our business that doesn’t sell alcoholic beverages to promote 

 0    8   0   2   2 0   2   1 

                       

Page 104

Item 6Appendix 2,



 

crime and antisocial behaviour, as it seems this is how the issues first arise. In terms of litter, we have 

experience in controlling this.  We strongly believe with the extended timing to 1am and allowing the premises 

to carry on with deliveries using 3rd platforms will give us a better opportunity to raise our sales. We are in the 

timings of other business and due to closing instore at 1am and carrying on deliveries, this will not have an 

impact on the cumulative policy put into place. We will not be adding to the current situation. Like all business 

we need the most help we can in these current times. 

 

  

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any  

one time, please state the number expected to attend.    

  

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?  

  

(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)  

  

Please tick all that  

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)          

apply  

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)   

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)   

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)   

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)   

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)   

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)   

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)   

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)   

h)   

(if ticking yes, fill in box H)  

  

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)    

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)   

  

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M 

       

Page 105

Item 6Appendix 2,



A 

  

  

Plays   

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7)  

Will the performance of a play take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick  

(please read guidance note 3)    

  

Indoors    

Outdoors    

Day  Start  Finish  Both    

Mon                Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)        

              

Tue                

              

Wed                State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read 

guidance note 5)  

                     

Thur                

              

Fri                Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of plays at different times to those listed 

in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 

6)        

              

Sat                

              

Sun                

              

Films   

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7)  

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors 

or outdoors or both – please tick  

(please read guidance note 3)   

  

Indoors    

Outdoors    

Day  Start  Finish  Both    

Mon                Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)        

              

Tue                

Page 106

Item 6Appendix 2,



B 

  

              

Wed                State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please 

read guidance note 5)  

                     

Thur                

              

Fri                Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)                      

Sat                

              

Sun                

              

  

 

Indoor sporting events  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7)  

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4)        

Day  Start  Finish  

Mon                

              

Tue                State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please 

read guidance note 5)  

                     

Wed                

              

Thur                Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)                      

Fri                

              

Page 107

Item 6Appendix 2,



C 

  

Sat                

              

Sun                

              

Boxing or wrestling 
entertainments  

Standard days and 
timings (please read  

guidance note 7)  

  

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment 
take place indoors or outdoors or both – 

please tick (please read guidance note 3)    

  

Indoors   

Outdoors   

Day  Start  Finish  Both   

Mon                Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)        

              

Tue                

              

Wed                State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling 

entertainment (please read guidance note 5)        

              

Thur                

              

Fri                Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 6)  

       

              

Sat                

              

Sun                

              

  

 

Live music  Standard 

days and timings 

Will the performance of live music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick  Indoors    

Page 108

Item 6Appendix 2,



D 

  

(please read guidance 

note 7)  

(please read guidance note 3)    

  Outdoors    

Day  Start  Finish  Both    

Mon                Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)        

              

Tue                

              

Wed                State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music 
(please read guidance note 5)  

                     

Thur                

              

Fri                Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 
the performance of live music at different times to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)  

       
              

Sat                

              

Sun                

              

Recorded music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7)  

Will the playing of recorded music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick  

(please read guidance note 3)    

  

Indoors    

Outdoors    

Day  Start  Finish  Both    

Mon                Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)        

              

Tue                

              

Wed                

Page 109

Item 6Appendix 2,



E 

  

              State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music 
(please read guidance note 5)  

       Thur                

              

Fri                Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

the playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in 
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)  

       
              

Sat                

              

Sun                

              

  

Performances of dance  

Standard days and 

timings (please read  

guidance note 7)  

  

Will the performance of dance take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick  

(please read guidance note 3)    

  

Indoors    

Outdoors    

Day  Start  Finish  Both    

Mon                Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)        

              

Tue                

              

Wed                State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance 
(please read guidance note 5)  

                     

Thur                

              

Fri                Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of dance at different times to those listed 

in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)                     

Sat                

              

Page 110

Item 6Appendix 2,



F 

  

Sun                

              

  

Anything of a similar 
description to that 

falling within (e), (f) or  

(g)  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7)  

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will 

be providing        

Day  Start  Finish  Will this entertainment take place indoors or Indoors 

outdoors or both – please tick (please read  

guidance note 3)  
Outdoors 

 

Both  

  

Mon                  

                

Tue                Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)        

              

Wed                

              

Thur  
              

State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 

description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read 
guidance note 5)  

                     

Fri  
              

              

Sat  
              

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the 

premises for the entertainment of a similar description to 

that falling within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 

guidance note 6)        
              

Sun  
              

              

  

Late night 
refreshment Standard Indoors    

Page 111

Item 6Appendix 2,



G 

  

days and timings 
(please read  

guidance note 7)  

  

Will the provision of late night refreshment 

take place indoors or outdoors or both – 

please tick (please read guidance note 3)    

  

Outdoors    

Day  Start  Finish  Both    

Mon   23:00    03:00      Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)    

 

23:00: 03:00 Monday to Saturday and on Thursday till 1am 

only. will not be played during these hours, to avoid public 

nuisance and any disorderly crime, music CCTV signs warning 

customers and the general public will be displayed. To 

minimise all this, we would like to operate instore TILL 1AM, 

and carry deliveries on the premises from 1am-3am 

STRICTLY 

              

Tue  23:00      03:00      

              

Wed   23:00    03:00      State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 

refreshment (please read guidance note 5) 

  There will be no seasonal variation. by trading until 3:00am, this  

will help meet additional demands during national holidays and any 

other seasonal demands, such as religious/community celebrations 

(Eid, fun fairs Christmas).  

 

              

Thur   23:00     03:00      

              

Fri   23:00     03:00      Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 
the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to 

those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 
guidance note 6)  

      None as stated above, we would like to trade till 1am instore and 

then close the shutter and carry on with deliveries using third party 

apps. We do not expect to do deliveries beyond 3am. 

              

Sat   23:00     03:00      

              

Sun  23:00      0:100      

              

  

Supply of alcohol 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7)  

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption 
– please tick (please read  

guidance note 8)    

  

On the 

premises    

Off the 

premises    

Day  Start  Finish  Both    

Mon                State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please 

read guidance note 5)  

                     

Page 112

Item 6Appendix 2,



H 

  

Tue                

              

Wed                

              

Thur                Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)                      

Fri                

              

Sat                

              

Sun                

              

  

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as 

designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in 

the checklist at the end of the form):  

  

Name        

Date of birth                                     

Address        

Postcode         

Personal licence number (if known)        

Issuing licensing authority (if known)        

  

  

  

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or 

matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 

children (please read guidance note 9).        

Page 113

Item 6Appendix 2,



I 

  

  

L  
  

Hours premises are 

open to the public 
Standard days and 
timings (please read  

guidance note 7)  

  

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)       

 

 Currently the business operates from 11:00am to 23:00pm, 

we would like to increase our hours to provide hot food and 

non-alcoholic drinks from 23:00pm to 03:00am, Monday-

Saturday and Till 1am on Sunday/. To avoid public nuisance 

and any disorderly crime, music will not be played during 

these hours, CCTV signs warning customers and the general 

public will be displayed. Staff will remind customers to keep 

quiet and not cause disturbance when leaving the shop, 

especially during night hours between 23:00pm-01:00am. 

After 1 am shutters to the premises will be put down and 

only delivery couriers from 3rd party apps can pick up. 

Considering the time from 1am the streets tend to start 

getting quitter and we are more than happy to trade for an 

extended 2 hours instore and the rest only deliveries   

Day  Start  Finish  

Mon  11:00      03:00      

              

Tue  11:00      03:00      

              

Wed  11:00       03:00   

              Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be 

open to the public at different times from those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)   

 

 

NONE - as stated above, opening until 01:00am will give us 
enough flexibility and capacity to meet any increased seasonal 
demands Carrying on deliveries from 01:00AM – 03:00AM will 
then  help us in these stressing times 

  We do not expect to trade past this time.   

Thur   11:00     03:00      

              

Fri   11:00   03:00      

              

Sat  11:00      03:00      

              

Sun   11:00   01:00      

              

  

  

Page 114

Item 6Appendix 2,



 

M   

  

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:  

  

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)  

      In order to promote all four licensing objectives and ensure the business is ran in 

accordance to the Fallowfield/Wilmslow Road Special Policy, certain measures and 

protocols will be initiated. This includes strong management control and effective training 

of staff, so they are all aware of what the premises licence requires.   

  

Great focus will be put on:  

- preventing crime, drunk and antisocial disorderly behaviours, particularly through 

installing and maintaining comprehensive 4k digital (colour) CCTV system, which will 

record continuously whilst the premises is open to the public. These recordings will be 

available for a minimum of 28 days upon request by a police officer or an authorised 

officer of licensing authority. Other measures to deter criminal activity will include hiring 

a security guard, employing more staff during late evening and early hours of morning, and 

displaying CCTV signs.  

- preventing harm to children   

- maintaining appropriate training records for each staff member, and this is to be refreshed 

at no longer than 12 months intervals. these records will be available for inspection upon 

request by a police officer or an authorised officer of Manchester city council.   

- ensuring a log book is kept on any actual or near miss risk events which may otherwise 

impact meeting the four licensing objectives. these events will be noted, discussed with 

staff and appropriate measures will be put into place to mitigate reoccurrence.  

  

As a business, we understand it is necessary to operate our business with a purpose of 

promoting all four-licensing objective and mitigate the negative impact the running of the 

business may have on the Fallowfield/Wilmslow Road Special policy. Please see below for 

further examples on how we plan to achieve this.   

  

b) The prevention of crime and disorder  

      It is evident from the special policy, that crime rates tend to be higher during late 

evening and early morning hours, in particular crime recorded with an alcohol marker and 

antisocial behaviours. In order to minimise the impact of longer operational times on these 

factors: - any person who appears intoxicated shall not be permitted on the premises or will 

be removed if they are disruptive and loud.   

- staff will be well trained in asking customers to use premises in an orderly and 

respectful manner, to reduce the likelihood of any drunk, disorderly and antisocial 

behaviour within retail area or outside the premises.   

- staff will be trained on what sort of behaviours to expect and suggestions on how to 

deal with it, whilst staying vigilant at all times.   

- if staff were to encounter aggressive customers, they will be trained to deal with this. 

for example, staying calm, listening to the customer and trying to understand the situation to 

find a solution. this will avoid aggregating the situation further and causing harm/discomfort 

to anyone in close proximity.   

- signs will be put up in the restaurant and outside, warning customers there is active 

CCTV present to deter unpleasant behaviour.   

- as late evening and early morning hours are common period where individuals will 

enter the shop drunk or display disorderly behaviours, extra staff will be employed during 

these hours to help disperse large groups that may be acting inappropriately and minimise 

disruption caused to the general public. additionally, we will consider hiring a security 

Page 115

Item 6Appendix 2,



 

guard which will help deter violent behaviour and allow staff to seek immediate help. if the 

security guard is not available, staff will be encouraging to call the police.   

During late hours the premises will be well lit, again to deter criminal activity and it will mean 

individuals will be easier to identify through CCTV cameras 

  

c) Public safety  

- Training staff in food and fire safety procedures and ensure they know how to use 

equipment safely in emergencies, for instance during a fire in the kitchen.  
- staff will be trained in food hygiene, to emphasise the importance of two step 

sanitation cleaning. This will prevent harm from being delivered to the public via food 

contamination. 

-  - Staff will regularly empty the bins inside the restaurant to prevent foul smell and 
food tipping onto the shop floor. This will promote cleanliness of the business, and safety of 

customers as they won’t slip on the food.  
- clear access to fire exits and ensuring these are not blocked during emergencies - 
Ensure fire extinguisher are accessible and fire alarms are working, so when it goes off 
everyone present in store is made aware and guided to the nearest exit.  

- Keeping takeaway clean at all times to prevent slip and falls. If the staff have recently 
mopped the floor, they will put wet floor signs so incoming customers are aware of any 
potential fall risk.  
- Any person who appears intoxicated shall not be permitted on the premises or if they 
are loud and disruptive, will be removed from the premises. if any violent behaviour does break 

out, staff will be trained to in intervene and ensure customers are removed from the premises 

without causing harm/discomfort to others present in the shop.  

- apparatus such as chairs and tables will be regularly checked to ensure they are safe 

for customers to sit and eat food at. However due to the COVID-19 pandemic staff and 

customers have been made aware of the 2m social distancing rule and from the 4th July 2020 

furthermore signs have been placed on the doors and markings on the floor to keep these rules 

in place and followed, with sanitation bottles placed upon the entrance to ensure hands are 

sanitised when entering, furthermore on the front counter.  
- food given to customers will be freshly made to maintain very high standards and 
public health.  

- Correct facilities such as sinks, toilets will be provided to staff to practice and 
reinforce hygienic practises. if staff report to be ill, they will not enter the workplace until they 
are clear.  

Following the 48-hour sick rule.  

- Ensure containers are kept clean to protect food from any contamination.   

- Ensure Fridge, freezers and food is kept at the correct temperature to prevent 

toxication of food.      

By trading only till 01:00am instore and carrying on deliveries with shutters down will give 

even more public safety because they will be able to order from the comfort of their house  

 

  

d) The prevention of public nuisance  

-       in order to combat the issue of littering in Fallowfield, the premises and immediate 

surrounding area shall be kept clean and free from litter at all time. this can be achieved 

through hiring more bins and ensuring these are accessible and not full. staff will ensure 

the surrounding premises is clean during all operational hours and dispose of any litter left 

by customers at the end of the night using the correct PPE.  

- Extra prominent, clear and legible notices will be displayed at the exits, reminding 

customers to respect the need of residents nearby and to not cause disturbance when 

leaving premises at night. it is evident that a lot of the commotion caused in Fallowfield is 

due to drunken customers; as our takeaway does not provide alcohol or will not allow 

intoxicated individuals into the store, it is therefore correct to assume a lot of these issues 

Page 116

Item 6Appendix 2,



 

will not come from our takeaway directly, but we can help control and minimise the 

situation.   

- Music will not be played during the hours, this will prevent any nuisance caused to 

neighbours. if music is played during these hours, it will be done so at a very low volume 

for only staff members to hear.  

- Any deliveries as part of the operation to business will be carried out in such a manner to 

prevent nuisance and disturbance to the nearby public, for example delivering at 

appropriate times, disposing any packages from the delivery correctly and not holding 

public traffic.  

- Customers will be asked not to stand around loudly talking in the street outside the 

premises.  

Staff will be trained in order to be effective at this.  

- Any lighting on or outside the premise will be positioned in a way so it does not cause 

disturbance to nearby residents  

- Movement of bins and rubbish shall be kept minimum after 23:00pm  

- Closing to the public outside at 01:00AM and carrying on deliveries till 03:00am will 

minimise any noise, litter and crime associated with dixy chicken Fallowfield  

 

  

e) The protection of children from harm  

  No use of adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters 

ancillary which will give concern in respect to children  

- any activity which deemed to bring harm to children shall we notified to police and 

relevant authorities  

- General log book shall be kept on the premise to learn from events even if they did 

not occur, to mitigate any risk to children.   

 

Checklist:  

Please tick to indicate agreement  

  

  

  

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee.  

  

    

  I have enclosed the plan of the premises.  

 

  
  

  I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and 

others where applicable.  
 
  

  I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be 

designated premises supervisor, if applicable.     

  I understand that I must now advertise my application.      

Page 117

Item 6Appendix 2,



 

 

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will 
be rejected.  

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not 

a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I 

have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United 

Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online right to work 

checking service (please read note 15).  

  
  

  

  

  

  

          

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE  

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.    

  

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A  

PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO  

BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF  

THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT  

LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE  

LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,  

ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE  

SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE 

KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE 

EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.   

  

  

Part 4 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 11)  

  

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance 

note 12).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.   

  

  

Declaration  

•  [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a 
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I 

am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the 
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject to a 
condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on 

of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I  

cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance 

note 15).             

  

 •  The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK 

(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing 

work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or  

 her proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to 

work check using the Home Office online right to work checking 

service which confirmed their right to work (please see note 15)  

Signature  
 

Page 118

Item 6Appendix 2,



 

Date        08/02/2021 

Capacity        Licence Holder 

  

For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other 

authorised agent (please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please 

state in what capacity.  

  

Signature    

Date         

Capacity         

  

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated 

with this application (please read guidance note 14)        

Post town          Postcode         

Telephone number (if any)         

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)        

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Notes for Guidance  

  

Page 119

Item 6Appendix 2,



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 121

Item 6Appendix 3,
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Team - Representation 
Name Sion Roberts 
Job Title Neighbourhood Compliance Officer 
Department Licensing and Out of Hours Compliance Team 
Address Level 1, Town Hall Extension, Manchester, M60 2LA 

Email Address  
Telephone Number  
 
Premise Details 
Application Ref No REF 255581 
Name of Premises Dixy Chicken 

Address 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS 
 
Representation 
Outline your representation regarding the above application below. This 
representation should describe the likely effect of the grant of the 
licence/certificate on the licensing objectives and on the vicinity of the 
premises.  
 
Licensing & Out of Hours Compliance Team (LOOHT) as the responsible 
authority have assessed the likely impact of the granting of this application 
taking into account a number of factors, including the nature of the area in 
which the premises is located and the proximity to residential accommodation, 
the hours applied for, and any potential risk that the grant of this application 
could lead to issues of public nuisance. 
 
The applicant has applied for the following hours and licensable activities: 
 
Provision of late-night refreshment: 
Mon to Sun 11.00pm to 3.00am 
(Telephone/Online orders for home delivery only between 1.00am to 3.00am) 
 
Opening hours: 
Mon to Sun 11.00am to 1.00am 
(Telephone/Online orders for home delivery only between 1.00am to 3.00am) 
 
The premises is situated on the busy Wilbraham, Wilmslow and Mosley Road 
Crossroad (both with traffic and pedestrians). The premises is facing the 
popular student licenced music/restaurant/ bar venue 256. To the left facing 
the premises is a late opening Shisha bar, to the right a Noodle takeaway, a 
licensed burger takeaway open to public until 03.00am and a nearby licensed 
Indian restaurant open to public until 01.30am. 
 
There are residential flats above several of these existing premises, a nearby 
apartment block and residential housing estate 50 metres to the rear of the 
premises. 
 
 
 

Page 141

Item 6Appendix 4,



The premises does have existing planning consent 102282/JO/2013/S1 
granted in 2013 for hours of operation Mon - Sun 11am - 3am. For carrying 
out this activity. 
 
The applicant acknowledges that the premises is situated within the special 
policy area (currently subject to review) as had previously applied in August 
2020, REF 247136. It appears the applicant has reviewed the committees 
comments and reasons for refusal and had made significant changes to this 
new application.  
 
Whilst further comprehensive conditions have been put forward in respect to 
all four licensing objectives, Licensing and Out of Hours Team recommend 
that in order to uphold the licensing objective in respect to public nuisance, 
the following additional conditions are attached to the Premises Licence., 
subject to the application being approved;- 
  

1. Post 01.00am operation is strictly delivery only. e.g. via third party 
food ordering companies, from the premises to a delivery 
address. Click and collect option by customers from the premises 
is prohibited. Clear information regarding this is attached to 
promotional materials (menu etc.) and online ordering platforms.  
 

2. All takeaway packaging and wrappers shall clearly identify the 
premises, i.e. by way of company logo or name. 

 
3. A direct telephone number of the manager of the premises shall 

be publicly available at all times the premises are open.  The 
telephone number is to be made available to residents in the 
vicinity. 
 

4. The premises licence holder shall attend a minimum of four local 
residents meetings per annum (if invited) to resolve any problems 
associated with the carrying on of licensable activities at the 
premises. 

 
 
We believe these conditions are proportionate and necessary to uphold the 
licensing objectives in respect to public nuisance. 
 

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions (Outlined Above) 
 
 

Page 142

Item 6Appendix 4,



From: Fraser Swift  

Sent: 08 March 2021 22:16 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Re: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, 

Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  

  

On behalf of the licensing authority as a responsible authority, I am objecting to the grant of this 

application. 

 

Although Fallowfield has been subject to a cumulative impact policy, this is currently under review 

and so not in effect. Nevertheless, cumulative impact can still be considered relevant to the grant of 

licensing premises: 

 

14.42 The absence of a CIA does not prevent any responsible authority or other person making 

representations on an application for the grant or variation of a licence on the grounds that the 

premises will give rise to a negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives, 

However, in each case it would be incumbent on the person making the representation to provide 

relevant evidence of cumulative impact. (s182 Guidance) 
 

Fallowfield is already populated with a high number of late night food takeaways and, 
disregarding commercial demand, there is evidence of negative impact of such businesses 
on the locality, particularly in relation to discarded litter and I am familiar with the concerns of 
local residents over the detrimental effects that discarded litter has on the area. 
 

The applicant has set out the steps they intend to promote the licensing objectives. 
However, it is submitted that the granting of an additional hot food takeaway would be likely 
to undermine the licensing objectives, in particular the prevention of public nuisance.  
 

An application to extend the hours for this premises by the same applicant was rejected 
following a hearing last year and, besides the special policy, it is submitted that the same 
reasons would still apply now. (A copy of that decision is provided below) 
 

Section 7.1 of the Council's Licensing Policy states: 
The authority recognises that licensed premises and activities can play an important role in 
ensuring the vitality and prosperity of the city in terms of economic growth, 
additional employment opportunities and improved physical environments However, if not 
managed carefully, negative impacts can arise. Licensed premises are expected to be an 
asset to their local area through the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

Having regard to the pre-existing issues in this area, in my opinion the grant of this licence would not 

be consistent with the promotion of the licensing objectives. I don't believe that conditions or 

reduced hours would be effective, and so the application should be refused in line with para 4.13 of 

the Council's Policy: 

 

4.13 However, where all the above steps are not considered appropriate and sufficient to 
promote the licensing objectives by the authority, the policy is to refuse the application 

 

Regards 

 

Fraser Swift 
Principal Licensing Officer 
 
 

Page 143

Item 6Appendix 4,



Decision: 
  
To refuse the application on the grounds of prevention of public nuisance. 
  
Reasons: 
  
The Committee considered the content of the Report, the oral representations of all parties as well as the relevant legislation , guidance 
and Manchester City Councils statement of licensing policy.  The Committee noted that the premises is situated in the Fallowfield and 
Wilmslow Road special policy area. The effect of the policy is that where there are representations against an application there is a 
rebuttable presumption against granting the application unless the Applicant can demonstrate why the operation of the premises will not 
add to the cumulative impact already being experienced.   
  
The Applicant told the Committee he was aware of the special policy and  accepted that operating the premises until 04:30 am as 
applied for would add to the cumulative impact in the area however taking into account the nature of the area he considered that if the 
hours were granted until 01:30 on Sunday and 02;00 Monday-Wednesday and 03:00 Thursday-Saturday this would not add to the 
cumulative impact.  He told the Committee if he operated for these hours he did not consider this would change the behaviour of 
customers in the area as these times were in line with other restaurants and bars and therefore he considered it would not add to the 
issues in the area.  He told the Committee he considered the measures he put forward in the application would prevent any further 
issues in the area.  In particular he made reference to relevant signage  being displayed in the premises and also trying not to serve 
intoxicated customers.  When asked to provide more detail about some of the measures such as litter control and security the Applicant 
was not yet able to offer details of how those measures would be put into practice. 
  
The Responsible Authorities and residents confirmed to the Committee that the area suffers from a disproportionate level of litter and 
discarded food caused by high levels of late night takeaways within this residential area.  Residents frequently find discarded fast food 
packaging, including from Dixy Chicken within their gardens as well as on the streets surrounding their properties.  Residents in the 
area have the additional burden to go out litter picking due to the volume of such waste being deposited in the area.  The Committee 
also heard from Greater Manchester Police that the area suffers from begging, street drinking and other antisocial behaviour which 
would also be exacerbated by the addition of another late night takeaway venue in the area. Licensing out of Hours also told the 
Committee it was their view that there would be an increase in noise in the area if an additional late night takeaway licence was granted 
which would impact on residents due to the proximity to residential accommodation. Residents confirmed they are frequently woken up 
at night by customers from premises including late night takeaways making noise on the streets, predominantly from students who tend 
to attend late night takeaways in groups rather than as individuals and have usually been drinking prior to getting their food.   
  
The Committee accepted that there are issues in the area in relation to noise and litter coming from the operation of the existing late 
night takeaways and considered that the Applicant had not demonstrated how the operation of these premises for the amended hours 
applied for would not add to the cumulative impact being experienced by residents in the area. The Committee considered that if the 
premises was open later this would add to the noise and litter in the area from fast food takeaways.  Although the applicant had put 
forward some proposals the Committee considered these were vague and did not have sufficient detail, the Committee did not think 
these measures  had been fully considered by the Applicant and therefore the Committee did not consider there were any exceptional 
reasons to cause it to depart from the policy and considered it appropriate to refuse the application in order to safeguard the aims of the 
policy.  

 

Page 144

Item 6Appendix 4,



Application objection Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, 

Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  
 

From:   

Sent: 07 March 2021 21:04 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Application objection Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a 

Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  

  

Dear Licensing Team, 

 

I’m objecting to the application of a increase hours of the Dixy chicken takeaway on 

Wilbraham Road.  

 

There outlet causes so much littering already and is clearly connected to the antisocial 

behaviour issues from students in the streets who visit the outlet and drop the food and 

waste on our surrounding area. In addition, with the late opening will be the increase noise 

in the streets from the students visiting this outlet. We are a residential area not a city centre 

so there no need to have a chicken shop open until 3am every night?  

 

 I have  I 

have food waste from this outlet thrown in my garden. If the outlet is allowed to open later it 

will cause more street noise and ASB from people coming and going and more waste issues 

on my property.  

 

In addition, we have a real issue with taxi drivers who throw their waste on to the street from 

this outlet on  and park up on the road with their engines running.  

 

There is no need for the outlet to open later. We have a real problem with health and obesity 

in the Fallowfield ward and there further opening hours would only increase the issues.  

 

Please do not allow this application to go though.  

 

Regards 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

Sent from my iPhone 
 

Page 145

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence(new)255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken 
 

From:   

Sent: 07 March 2021 23:11 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Premises Licence(new)255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken  

  

Dear Sir/Madam, 
I write to object to the above Licence Application by Dixy Chicken Takeaway to trade 
until 3.00am every morning. 
 
There is a large concentration of Licensed premises in Fallowfield District Centre. 
Manchester City Council implemented a Cumulative Impact Policy to prevent any 
further increase in late night noise disturbance and littering in the locality. Such a 
recognition of the exceptional public nuisance caused by Licensed Premises in 
Fallowfield must surely be extended to this application. Another licensed takeaway 
trading into the small hours will make a bad situation worse. 
 
Please see below a copy of a recent e-mail I sent to the Off-Campus Officer,  

. I live close to Fallowfield District Centre and the nuisance of noise and 
littering is detrimental to my family's peace of mind. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 

 
  

 
 
Sent: Wednesday, March 3, 2021, 11:48:04 AM GMT 
Subject: Re:  
 
Dear  
I'd like to add in relation to  comments that I litter picked the Avenue on Sunday 
and again yesterday Tuesday. On both occasions I picked up several bucketfuls of 
mainly discarded takeaway litter, cans and masks. It is as bad as I've ever known it.  
I also reported on-line yesterday broken beer bottles in the Avenue and a vandalised 
tree on Egerton Road. 
. 
With best wishes,  
 

Page 146

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham 

Road, Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward) 
 

From:   

Sent: 06 March 2021 09:18 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, 

M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  

  

I can't understand why this application has come up again. Fallowfield has enough late 

night takeaways without adding another one. Noise, litter and drunkenness are the 

reasons why I object - again - to this application. I'm fed up of Fallowfield becoming 

'Studentville' and all the problems this brings for us 'normal' residents.  

 

Read the reviews of this place - it's not even decent food served pleasantly, so that's 

another reason for refusing to allow it to stay open later! 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 147

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham 

Road, Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward) 
 

From:   

Sent: 06 March 2021 12:45 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, 

M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  

  

Good morning, 

 

I am writing to object to the application for the Dixy Chicken takeaway take away to stay 

open until 3am. 

 

I live in the area, and already find that the noise, litter and anti-social behaviour around 

businesses like this have a highly negative impact on our community. 

 

I regularly run past Dixy Chicken in the mornings and the litter outside, along with, 

unfortunately, occasional piles of vomit from customers the night before is a blight. In 

addition, the congestion caused by delivery drivers and customers who attempt to park 

really close to the traffic lights is hazardous.  Unfortunately, that particular parade of 

takeaways is also becoming a real magnet for anti-social behaviours with groups of young 

men hanging around, creating an unsafe atmosphere for residents.  By opening later, the 

unit will become a focus for even more drunken anti-social behaviour. 

 

I hope that you will turn down this application for the health, safety and wellbeing of 

residents in the Fallowfield community. 

 

Kind regards 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 148

Item 6Appendix 4,



Application Reference: 255581/BJ1 
 

From:   

Sent: 05 March 2021 17:44 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Application Reference: 255581/BJ1  

  

Dear Council/Licensing 

 

We wish to oppose this proposal for a number of reasons. 

As you are aware Fallowfield has been part of a CIP in response to the problems of litter and 

anti-social behaviour in the area. 

We feel an extension to the hours will only make the problems worse. 

We live in  and regularly have Dixy Chicken waste dumped by walking customers 

AND increasingly by those who sit outside in a car and then dump their waste on the 

pavement or road. This weekend we actually removed two chicken waste bone carcasses 

from the front garden which had been thrown there. 

 

While not all the waste dumped is from Dixy, there has been plenty that was in their 

packaging and so clearly identifiable. 

 

Later opening means more people wandering down the street in early hours disturbing our 

family in what is a mixed neighbourhood where many of us have work in the morning. 

Indeed we and a number of our neighbours are key workers who don't enjoy having our 

sleep disturbed in the early hours, nor having to clear their litter. 

 

We hope we will reject this application and support families in this area. 

 

Regards 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 149

Item 6Appendix 4,



Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a 

Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward) 
 

From:   

Sent: 05 March 2021 17:46 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, 

Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  

  

Re the premises licensing application below 

Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, 
Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward) 
  
To The Premises Licencing Officer, Manchester 
Council    PREMISES.LICENSING@MANCHESTER.GOV.UK 

  
I wish to lodge my strongest objection to this license application, on the grounds that there 
are already more than enough take away premises within the crossroads area of Fallowfield 
and to extended the operating time of this one for four further hours up to 3.00 is 
unacceptable. I believe that it will harm our community further by adding more public 
nuisance if this late licence is granted.  
  

• Late night deliveries bring issues of wrong delivery calls at our home late at night and 
also the unwanted noise of deliveries nearby … all disturbing our sleep. 

• The Dixie Chicken rubbish already thrown in our garden and on our street is not only 
a nuisance and eyesore – it also creates a health hazard. More sales time to produce 
more rubbish will only exacerbate matters.  

• The parking from customers and delivery drivers, often on the pavement near the 
outlet and near a very busy crossroads, causes a traffic hazard.  

• In addition to creating a public nuisance and a safety hazard, it is the case that that 
the nature of the product sold from these premises is classed as a health hazard by 
our medical practitioners and Council public health practitioners.  

  
In conclusion, It is clear that this food outlet is a liability and not an asset to our community. 
This is confirmed by the tenor of negative reviews on TripAdvisor.. 
https://www.tripadvisor.co.uk/Restaurant_Review-g187069-d1023161-Reviews-
Dixy_Chicken_Fallowfield-Manchester_Greater_Manchester_England.html 
  
This is a repeated late night licence request which has been refused four times before and 
should not be granted on the fifth application. Furthermore, the applicant should be 
instructed to cease and desist from making further applications as s/he is wasting public 
money in this way.  
  
I trust that Premises Licensing, Manchester Council will take the right decision here in 
refusing the request as part of an ongoing process/journey towards restoring some greater 
degree of health, wellbeing, peace and harmony to our over-exposed and poorly-served 
neighbourhood in the Fallowfield ward. 
  
Yours sincerely, 
  

 

 

Page 150

Item 6Appendix 4,



255581/BJ1 Dixy Chicken Unit 1, 5A Wilbraham Road, M14 6UW 
 

From:   

Sent: 07 March 2021 12:06 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: 255581/BJ1 Dixy Chicken Unit 1 5A wilbraham Road M14 6UW  

  

Dear Sir, 

 

I wish to object to any extension of opening hours for this premises. 

 

Fallowfield already has a problem with late night disturbances and for this business to open 

until 3am every day  will bring more people to the area. Even delivery and take away only 

will cause additional disturbance as more traffic will be driving along the neighbouring 

streets. 

 

Fallowfield has a big problem with litter. A lot of this is from discarded takeaway wrappers 

and I have certainly seen Dixy Chicken packaging lying about the place.  I have twice in the 

last three days had to clear up broken bottles and food wrappers from   

 Additional opening hours will just add to this. 

 

I hope the licensing committee will refuse this application for additional opening hours. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 151

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1 5a Wilbraham 

Road, Manchester M14 6JS (Fallowfield ward) 
 

From:   

Sent: 07 March 2021 18:03 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Cc:  ;   

Subject: FW: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1 5a Wilbraham Road, 

Manchester M14 6JS (Fallowfield ward)  

  

Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester 
M14 6JS (Fallowfield ward)  
  

Dear Sirs, 
  
I write as a member of the South East Fallowfield Residents Group (SEFRG) planning sub-
committee in relation to the above application from Dixy Chicken at 5a Wilbraham Road, 
Fallowfield for a licence to extend their normal hours which would allow them to trade up to 
03.00 every night Monday through Sunday. 
  
We vigorously object to this application on several counts including: 
  
Public Nuisance: 
  
Residents in the local area regularly litter pick the roads in their localities and Dixy Chicken 
wrappings/boxes invariably feature in the daily haul.  Such litter regularly finds it way into the 
tree bases and gardens, on garden walls, in the gutters and pavements.  Much of the litter 
includes the remains of food which encourages the interest of rodents in particular which are 
a health hazard. 
  
Public Safety 

  
The Dixy Chicken premises are very close to the junction of Wilbraham Road and Wilmslow 
Road, both of which are very busy. 
  
Of additional concern is the parking of the Dixy Chicken delivery vehicles on the pavement 
outside the premises decreasing accessibility for pedestrians, wheelchair users and 
buggies.  Delivery vehicles are often observed doing  U-turns at this major crossroad 
junction posing a threat to road safety. 
  
Public safety is also affected by the cavalier attitude of the catering staff to food safety this 
statement is born out of then comments posted on line in respect of Dixy Chicken’s current 
offering, comments include: 
  
The reviews make damming reading: 

• Food was poor. 
• My burger had green “fluff” on it 
• Bread and filet were stale, food was bland and refried.  
• Delivery driver was smoking in his car with my food in there the food was stone cold. 
• The food is nasty enough already without it being stone cold! Not impressed. 
• 'we ordered burgers and they were undercooked and it made us very unwell. 
They go on...................... 
  

Page 152

Item 6Appendix 4,



Dixy Chicken sounds like a real threat to health! 
  
Another late night take-away / delivery service is only going to exacerbate the already 
serious rubbish and litter issues this area experiences not to say the detriment to the health 
of residents from the often associated noise and late night public nuisance that accompany 
extended opening/trading hours.   
  
Fallowfield is already saturated with late night takeaways; the addition of a further late night 
takeaway will only compound the situation.  
  
We ask for the rejection of this application. 
  
Yours faithfully, 

  

 

  
 

SEFRG Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Page 153

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, 

Manchester, M14 6JS 
 

From:   

Sent: 08 March 2021 14:15 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Premises Licence 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 

6JS  

  

Re: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, 

Manchester, M14 6JS 

I live in the area and am constantly subject to the problems that takeaways already 

present to the local community. 

I would therefore like you to reject this application for the following reasons. 

• Increased litter nuisance. 

Takeaway wrappings and discarded drink and coffee cartons placed on the pavement 

where a car has been parked late at night are an increasing problem in the streets 

surrounding this takeaway. This will only increase if people are allowed to use this it in 

the early hours when there is no one about to question their behaviour. 

• Increased noise. 

Late night takeaways seem to attract cars with loud exhausts and stereo systems. If this 

licence is granted then there is the likelihood that this noise will extend into the small 

hours. Delivery vehicles would also operate later into the night with the associated traffic 

noise and door knocking. 

• Dangerous parking 

Cars and delivery vans using this takeaway and others adjacent to it often park and 

manoeuvre close to the busy junction with Wilmslow Road creating a danger to others. 

Please refuse this application 

 

Kind Regards 

 

 
 

Page 154

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, 

Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward) 
 

From: Fallowfield Community Guardians  

Sent: 08 March 2021 15:35 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Cc:  ;  

   

Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, 

M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  

  

Dear Sirs 

 

I am writing on behalf of Fallowfield & Withington Community Guardians. We strongly 

oppose the request for yet another late-night licence. This is the fifth one, the last four 

have been refused. The reason for our continued objection is that this area is swamped with 

late night takeaways and licenced premises which create a vast amount of public nuisance 

including night noise from (the mainly student) patrons who walk past our homes late at 

night and wake us up. The cumulative effect of all these licensed premises is not good for 

the health and wellbeing of families who live in the area all year round. Many of the licenced 

premises cater mainly for the student population and don't operate at all (or at greatly 

reduced hours) during the academic holiday periods (Christmas, Easter and summer). This is 

almost half of the year.  

 

The applicant is the same as named on the last application (summer 2020). Despite the list of 

conditions, we do not believe that the management of the premises is acceptable or that 

there has been any change over recent months. Recent reviews attached indicate that staff 

and delivery drivers do not behave in a responsible manner.  

 

 

Page 155

Item 6Appendix 4,



 
 

 

 
Since the last hearing for Dixy Chicken Fallowfield we note that there was a hygiene rating of 

2 in October 2020 and the just eat website advertises their opening hours beyond 11pm 

without a licence for late night hot food. This does not inspire confidence in the upholding of 

the licence conditions or good management. 

 

Public Nuisance 

There is already an overabundance of licenced premises in Fallowfield which target the vast 

number of students that live in this suburb. Residents in our group have been suffering the 

effects of the excessive number of licenced premises for years. These create massive 

amounts of public nuisance due to the number of premises. Another opening until 1.00am 

every night with deliveries until 3am is not what Fallowfield needs and we are convinced that 

it will add to the cumulative impact of noise and litter. How can it not? Litter will be dropped 

and this may not be outside the premises. Dixy litter is found all over Fallowfield already. A 

short walk this week around Fallowfield this week led to the finding of many discarded Dixy 

wrappers including on the Holy Innocents church car park, Wilbraham Rd, Wellington Rd, 

Landcross Road as well as many others. Some example photos are attached. 

 

Fallowfield has many restaurants, takeaways and bars selling food. This accounts for a high 

percentage of the retail units and is amongst the highest (probably is the highest) 

percentage in all district centres in Manchester:  

 

 

Page 156

Item 6Appendix 4,



McDonald's   Nest (nightclub)  Kebab King 

Abduls   Wetherspoons  Kosmos 

Saajan    Arabian Nites   The Bar 

Blue Café   Yoyo Noodles  Haus 

Joel's Grill   Burger Box   Cremes 

Allen's Fried Chicken  House of Chai  Desi's 

Subway   Turkiss   Jaipur Palace 

Tzatziki   Krunchy Fried Chicken Yahala 

Dixy Chicken   Dominos   Inferno    

Reds True BBQ  Chesters   Friendship (pub) 

Chicken King   Papa Johns   Nandos 

Fuzion    Dream Wok   Nayaab 

256 (nightclub) 

 

Some of the above premises have a late-night licence which runs into the very early hours 

but many do not. The problems of noise and anti-social behaviour caused by the large 

number of these create noise nuisance as well as litter because takeaways rejuvenate people 

after a night out at a bar. They then became even louder on their walk home and often 

deposit their litter in our hedges and gardens. 

 

Deliveries during the night already bring a lot of noise and traffic to residential streets and 

sometimes result in residents being woken during the night by delivery to the wrong 

address. Car door slamming and engine revving disturbs our sleep. There are many families 

living in Fallowfield who have children and the constant erosion of normal peace at night- 

time by delivery vehicles operating from late night licensed premises means that residents 

(including students) often suffer sleep deprivation. Parking access for delivery drivers is also 

near a very busy road junction where there are a high number of road traffic accidents. The 

extra delivery vehicles will add to these problems and add to problems of Public Safety 

 

Conclusion 

Residents feel that another late night take away in Fallowfield will undoubtedly add to the 

cumulative impact and will undermine the licensing objectives. No amount of conditions 

imposed will convince us that these premises will uphold the licensing objectives especially 

in relation to public nuisance, so we ask that this application be refused in full.  

 

Yours 

 

 

Community Guardian Coordinator 

Fallowfield & Withington 
 

 

Page 157

Item 6Appendix 4,



 

 

 

Page 158

Item 6Appendix 4,



25/02/2021 Email - Premises Licensing - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk/inbox/id/AAMkADcwNzQ4MTkyLWUzOWEtNDViZS1iMDUwLWVhZThiMz… 1/2

Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road,
Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)

 
Thu 25/02/2021 07:13
To:  Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk>

Your Ref: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14
6JS, (Fallowfield ward) 

 
To whom it may concern; 
 
I am a long-term resident   and I am objec�ng to the request for a license
extension un�l 3:00am Monday > Sunday at “Dixy Chicken” (5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS) 
 
These premises (Dixy Chicken, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS) are situated on Wilbraham Road
Fallowfield, which is one of the main arterial routes into and out of Manchester City centre. 
 
It is in close proximity to myself  and local residen�al proper�es and is also in an area
where there are several bars, public houses, off licenses & takeaways and one of the largest student
popula�ons in Europe. 
 
The extended opera�onal hours requested (Un�l 3am 7 x days a week) would mean that the premises would
be open later than nearly all other premises in the area.  
 
This will create added noise disturbance which will obviously be extended beyond what is already being
suffered on a regular basis by the local residents. 
 
The Wilmslow Road corridor already suffers from begging, street drinking and other alcohol related an�-social
behaviour and to allow the premises an opera�ng window un�l 3am 7 x days a week will undoubtedly
exacerbate these problems. 
 
Students (of which the greater percentage of cliental to this junk food emporium would be) are a magnet for
robbers and drug dealers. The inebriated student (who, quite frankly, in this condi�on, bless them, are the
only humans purchasing this junk) staggering around with their “Dixy Chicken” box, is an easy pic for a robber.
A drug dealer, would find this spot irresis�ble in the small hour �me for an extra sale.  
 
“Dixy Chicken” Opera�on. 51% of feedback comments, give this junk food emporium 1 star out of five stars
and I will quote a most recent one from 12-01-21:- 
 
“Poor customer service Very aggressive staffs This branch has changed hand recently and since the service
and food quality is gone down, staff at this place are very rude and aggressive DO NOT ORDER OR VISIT
THIS TAKEAWAY” 
 
The extended opera�onal hours requested (Un�l 3am 7 x days a week) would only be crea�ng an addi�on to
the 1-star reviews then, and more importantly, to affec�ng the wellbeing (most certainly, cons�tu�onally) of
the junk food patron.  
 
The Wilmslow Road area of Fallowfield has a Cumula�ve Impact Policy (What this means is that this area has
been iden�fied as one in which there is a concentra�on of licensed premises which is deemed maximum for
an area to contain and that the hours in which premises can open and are already at the earliest and latest
�mes acceptable for the area) the applica�on here in this opera�ng window (Extension un�l 3am 7 x days a
week) is only going to add to problems of street noise, nuisance and li�er (I’m fed up with picking junk food
wrappers, boxes and used �ssues out of my front garden) 
 

Page 159

Item 6Appendix 4,



25/02/2021 Email - Premises Licensing - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk/inbox/id/AAMkADcwNzQ4MTkyLWUzOWEtNDViZS1iMDUwLWVhZThiMz… 2/2

Manchester City Council do not create Cumula�ve Impact Zones lightly and quite frankly, Wilmslow
Road/”Brow” area of Fallowfield does not need an opera�ng window of this nature (3am 7 x days a week)
adding to the already insufferable cacophony of noise (delivery cars coming and going, early hour inebriated
patrons {mainly students} screeching and hollering etc)  
 
 
I would be very grateful if you could consider these points,  
  
Yours sincerely,  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
PS Comments. It has also just been brought to my a�en�on, that, unbelievably, this is the fourth �me in a
few years, that “Dixy Chicken” has applied for a small hour’s late licence. Each and every one of these has
been refused. The fact of the ma�er is; nothing’s changed, the reasons surrounding those refusals haven’t
changed and therefore I’ve every confidence that the good folk of the commi�ee with refuse this yet again

 

Page 160

Item 6Appendix 4,



From:  

Sent: 02 March 2021 11:42 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: FW: AMENDED CONSULTATION NOTIFICATION Re: Premises Licence (new) application 

255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  

  

Dear Sir 

  

Please find attached the comments of Withington Civic Society to this licensing application 

  

Many thanks 

  

 

Withington Civic Society planning coordinator 

 

Response on behalf of Withington Civic Society Planning Group 

Withington Civic Society Planning Group opposes the application. 

This is a repeat application. We believe similar applications for the same premises have been 
made on several occasions and in each case have been rejected.  
 
We believe, according to research previously carried out by Manchester City Council, that 
Fallowfield already suffers from the greatest levels of crime (both general and alcohol-related) 
compared to surrounding areas,.  The degree of antisocial behaviour recorded in the area is 
also significantly disproportionate.  Antisocial behaviour levels peak during the late night/early 
morning, and correlate with the closing times of alcohol-led licensed premises. 
 
Complaints about antisocial behaviour from local residents repeatedly cite problems of noise, 
vandalism and antisocial behaviour from persons going out to and returning from licensed 
premises, including complaints of preloading and drunkenness. Additionally, there was 
evidence of litter caused as a result, including discarded alcohol containers and takeaway 
wrappers in the street. Extra street cleaning services are required in the local area as a result 
of the disproportionate levels of litter, particularly caused by the high number of late-night 
takeaways in Fallowfield. Problems of preloading en route to licensed premises persist despite 
the existence of a Designated Public Place Order for Fallowfield. 
We would note in particular that: 

• Litter in the area of the relevant premises is already a problem. Later opening 

hours will exacerbate this. 

• Noise from delivery vehicles, not to mention hammering on doors, ringing of 

doorbells and so on will add to the night time disturbances 

• The incidence of antisocial behaviour in the immediate area causes significant 

loss of amenity to families and residents, with much on street drinking and late 

night /all night parties by young people living in HMOs. Such a late night 

takeaway will lead to the congregation of large numbers of drinkers with all the 

attendant noise and littering. 

• The problems of for example Fallowfield are working their way into Withington, 

and we in Withington are very anxious that the situation in Fallowfield should 

not get any worse. 

Page 161

Item 6Appendix 4,



Whatever steps the applicant may take, the overwhelming probability is that the granting of a 

licence extension as requested by the applicant will only exacerbate the problems associated 

with such premises as identified above.  

Therefore the application should be refused. 

  

For and on behalf of Withington Civic Society Planning Group 

2nd March 2021  

Page 162

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence. 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, M14 6JS 
 

From:  

Sent: 08 March 2021 15:43 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk>;   

  

Subject: Premises Licence. 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, M14 6JS  

  

I write to object to yet another premise wishing to extend its hours. We already have plenty 

takeaways. Granting licence extension will simply lead to more noise, more disruption of 

people's sleep, more litter, and more drug activity. These aspects are already at unacceptable 

levels for residents, have increased year on year, and have had profound effects on South 

East Fallowfield as a civilised living space.  

 

Each day I fully expect to go into my front garden and find food wrappers, food trays along 

with beer cans or wine bottles left on my front wall, or, more usually, thrown into my garden. 

Adding another 28 hours of vending a week will only add to our poisoned travails.  

 

We have had enough of a structurally fragile economy (night-time economy) which has 

given much anger and anxiety to the decent folks of our communities. 

 

We do not want this. Reject it. 

 

 
 

Page 163

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence ( new ) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1,5a Wilbraham Road, 

Manchester, M14 6JS ( Fallowfield ward ) 
 

From:   

Sent: 08 March 2021 17:00 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1,5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, 

M14 6JS ( Fallowfield ward )  

  

 Dear Sir / Madam, 

 

I write to object to this proposal for even later night opening of this business.  

 

On reading the owners proposals for improving matters there is very little, if any, which take 

into consideration the effect this proposal will have on the long-term residents in the wider 

area where most of the students live. We have suffered long and hard from businesses which 

sell their wares into the early and late nights.  

 

We find packaging, boxes, papers, cardboard cups, straws, left-over food and bottles flung 

into our gardens or left on our walls or just dropped in the street for residents to clear up. 

The noise we suffer from due to passing revellers is enough to wake up children who have to 

get up for school and adults for work, there is no consideration shown for we residents. 

 

I cannot see the necessity for food retailers to be open so late, except to fill the pockets of 

their owners, with no thought for others! Therefore, I ask that the Licencing committee 

please refuse this proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 164

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, 

Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  
 

From:   

Sent: 08 March 2021 17:54 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Cc:   

Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, 

M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  

  

Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham 

Road, Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)   
 
I write to object to this license application in that there are already many take out 

outlets in this area—not least in the centre of Fallowfield.  
  
I do not see how extending the opening times will enhance an already stressed area 

nor contribute to the wider wellbeing of those in the area.  
  
In particular, I object on the grounds that:  

• Late night/early morning deliveries from such an outlet make a disturbance in 

local streets.   

• An extension will mean the generation of yet more meal-related rubbish: 

   

Finally, I think that yet another application from this outlet is an abuse of the licensing 

process.  
 
I urge that Premises Licensing, Manchester City Council refuse this application.   
   
Yours sincerely,  
   

  
  

  
 

Page 165

Item 6Appendix 4,



Dixy Chicken, M14 6JS 
 

From:   

Sent: 08 March 2021 19:41 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Dixy Chicken, M14 6JS  

  
Dear Sirs/Madam, 

 

Re: New Premises Licence  

 

255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS 

 

I am writing on behalf of South East Fallowfield Residents' Group (South East Fallowfield Residents' 

Group). We would like to object to the above application in the strongest terms. We believe this is the 

fifth time this applicant has applied for a new licence and each time the application is broadly the 

same. First of all, I would ask the council's legal advisors to consider whether repeated applications 

like this are regarded as vexatious, frivolous or repetitious and should therefore be refused at the 

outset? Whilst this test normally seems to apply to objectors, we haven't seen anything in the 

Licensing Act that specifically prevents it being applied to applicants. Repeated requests like this place 

a very unfair burden on local residents who have to keep a constant eye on all new licence 

applications, then spend time composing their objections and (where possible) attending hearings. If 

they do not do this, because of the permissive nature of the Act, these licences will be automatically 

granted.  

 

In most areas, the Licensing Act probably works quite well because local businesses are obviously 

keen to serve the needs of local residents and so these types of conflicts don't normally arise however, 

in areas where there are very large transient populations (e.g. tourists, students etc) this issue is much 

more likely. In Fallowfield (M14 6 postcode area)  56% of the population are now students and there 

are extremely high numbers of licensed places (37 in district centre alone) which target this market 

and want excessively long opening hours which would simply not be tolerated, or supported, in other 

suburban areas. This is not a city centre. 

 

Aside from the Act itself, we wonder whether this type of burden also constitutes an infringement of 

our human rights, again we would ask the council's legal team to examine whether this is the case. In 

particular, we note that Article 1 of the First Protocol talks about the right to peaceful enjoyment of 

your property and this constant intrusion into our lives certainly does affect our peaceful enjoyment. 

We have to spend a lot of time researching licensing law, producing evidence, writing objections and 

speaking at hearings. Moreover, this is not something everyone is able to do - not everyone has the 

necessary communication skills, confidence or time to deal with these matters and we cannot afford 

specialist legal advisors to do this work for us, particularly because of the sheer volume of applications 

we face.  

 

Public Nuisance: 

Litter Issues 

It is quite clear to us that this is yet another business hoping to capitalise on the late-night student 

market as they return from the nearby bars/clubs, from visiting friends or simply nipping out for a 

late-night food fix. Most working people and families will not be looking for a meal after 11pm. We 

know from experience that these late-night customers are often under the influence of alcohol and/or 

other substances- and, as such, they are much more likely to drop takeaway litter on their way home. 

Any amount of litter picking in the immediate area of the shop will not stop this happening. On a 

recent walk to Platt Fields Park, we saw Dixy litter strewn on the streets and, in particular, we saw 

Page 166

Item 6Appendix 4,



several wrappers in the Fallowfield Brow area. The council already provides extra cleaning services to 

deal with the litter problem but, in spite of this, we still wake up to take away litter (including Dixy's 

wrappers). I think it is particularly sad that children growing up here will see litter as 'the norm' and I 

am sure that this is building up yet more problems in the future as a generation grows up thinking it's 

okay to drop your rubbish. Apart from the litter aspect, there are also the noise implications - 

(intoxicated) people out at this time of night are often in groups (and this particularly applies to 

students) and we know to our cost that they are often extremely noisy. It is not uncommon to be 

woken up several times a night by these groups and, over a period of time, I think this is very 

damaging to our collective health and wellbeing (again I would ask you to consider Article 1 of the 

first protocol of the Human Rights Act). 

 

Noise 

We also note the applicant would like to do late night home deliveries and we are also strongly 

opposed to this. Local residents complain about being woken up by these takeaway deliveries. Loud 

door knocking (HMOs often don't have bells), car doors slamming/motorbikes revving, deliveries 

going to the wrong address are all very disturbing and it is particularly damaging when you have to 

wake up early the next morning for school, lectures or work. I spoke to a student last year who asked 

how we managed to cope with the nightly disturbance, year on year. She came from South London 

(so not some quiet backwater) and said that she often experienced migraine attacks from lack of sleep 

caused by the street noise around here. Moreover, just because takeaways are delivered doesn't mean 

that there are no litter issues. Takeaway wrappers like the Dixy's boxes are quite bulky and we often 

see litter of this nature in front gardens and overflowing from wheelie bins. The most depressing thing 

about this type of litter is that we cannot even clear it up ourselves because it isn't on our land.  

 

Public Safety 

Dixy's is situated very close to the Wilmslow Road/Wilbraham Road junction and to have delivery 

drivers pulling in and out with deliveries will obviously pose an increased road safety hazard - 

especially bearing in mind the level of traffic, including cyclists, in the area 

 

Conclusion 

We cannot see any possible benefit in granting this licence in any form whatsoever, indeed we think 

there is a very strong case to say that this application should be struck out from the outset because it 

is substantially the same as previous applications.  

 

However, if it does come to a hearing, we would urge the panel to refuse the application in full - there 

are no conditions which will prevent it causing a (significant) public nuisance and thereby undermine 

the licensing objectives. Allowing the potential for any more litter in this area is completely 

unacceptable, especially at the moment when council revenues have been slashed and there just 

aren't the resources to deal with any extra policing/enforcement issues associated with this type of 

premises. We really fear that unless firm action is taken by the various authorities to deal with these 

issues, we will lose yet more local people.  

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

Chair of SEFRG 

 

Page 167

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, 

Manchester, M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward) 
 

From:   

Sent: 08 March 2021 20:15 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Premises Licence (new) 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, 

M14 6JS, (Fallowfield ward)  

  

Dear Licensing Team  

 

I refer to the above request for a late-night license. 

 

It is unfair on our locality to grant this application. There are already too many of these 

'takeaways' and the increase in litter, antisocial behaviour and noise is unacceptable.  

 

There are not enough resources in the area to deal with these additional issues. 

 

Please refuse this license. 

 

Regards  

 

 

 

  

 
 

Page 168

Item 6Appendix 4,



Premises Licence 255582/BJ1 

 

From:   

Sent: 08 March 2021 23:36 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: Premises Licence 255582/BJ1  

  
Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

Re: application 255581/BJ1.  

 

Dixy Chicken 

Unit 1 

5a Wilbraham rd. 

M14 6JS 

 

I live in Fallowfield and I would like to strongly object to this new licence application. I understand that 

these premises have applied for a late licence numerous times before and the panel have rejected 

their application with good reason. I do not see how granting a late licence both at the premises 

themselves and late-night deliveries will aid the licensing objectives, in particular with regard to public 

nuisance.  

 

Dixy Chicken litter wrappers are very prevalent in our neighbourhood and it’s perfectly obvious that 

extending the opening hours will increase the amount of litter. In particular customers who visit these 

types of premises in the early hours are often drunk and do not care where they drop their litter. We 

are regularly woken up by comings and going’s in the middle of the night and it’s often by groups of 

people who have visited takeaways. I’ve even had to remove take away contents from my car window 

screen in the morning and we regularly have wrappers dumped in our hedge and thrown into our 

garden (including Dixy Chicken), our puppy often finds small pieces of chicken bone when we take her 

out in the morning which are potentially dangerous if swallowed.   

 

I understand this business also wants to deliver food in the early hours of the morning. Again, this is 

totally unacceptable, and it will undoubtedly disturb neighbours.  

 

A quick look on trip advisor reviews reveals that this is a poor-quality establishment and it is quite 

obviously geared towards attracting indiscriminating drunk students on a night out, who in turn will 

increase the noise and litter nuisance in the area. As residents we have absolutely had enough and we 

need the council to stand firm and reject this application in full. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 

Page 169

Item 6Appendix 4,



New Premises Licence: 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, 

M14 6JS 
 

From:   

Sent: 08 March 2021 22:04 

To: Premises Licensing <Premises.Licensing@manchester.gov.uk> 

Subject: New Premises Licence: 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 

6JS  

  
Dear Sirs/Madam, 

 

Re: New Premises Licence - 255581/BJ1: Dixy Chicken, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS 

 

My family have lived in Fallowfield for over forty years and were never really aware of the processes to 

object to planning and licensing applications. As such we have had to live with extreme increases in the 

number of HMOs and students within the community, as a result of which the culture of late-night bars 

and takeaways has expanded and taken over our high street. Therefore, on behalf of my family and 

mainly my mother, we would like to strongly object to this application.  

 

The main reason for our objection is that the application for extended hours, will only exacerbate such 

public nuisance issues below, that already exist in Fallowfield and haven’t been resolved for years:  

• Litter 

• Noise 

• Public safety 

 

Litter has been an ongoing issue in the Fallowfield area for a very long time and remains a a huge 

problem. I attach some pictures of Dixy boxes, which I saw strewn on the pavement, along with other 

litter which I took photos of on one of my weekend walks. It isn’t just wrappers that are left on the 

streets, it’s also chicken bones and food debris and it’s horrible to see the streets I grew up on, 

disrespected so brazenly. Honestly, not what I would like to see when I’m out in my neighbourhood 

for my one walk a day in lockdown. There are already not enough bins in the area and the bins that 

there are, are always full and overflowing. Extending the opening hours to 3am, will cater for the late-

night traffic of people. I can’t believe this would be local families and residents! It would most likely be 

late night partygoers, mainly drunk students who won’t be in the right state of mind to dispose of 

their fast-food containers responsibly. You can already see this in the pictures I have attached.  

 

Noise and public safety are also compromised by these late-night partygoers. At that time in the 

morning, when most people are trying to sleep, people lingering in the streets to get their fast-food 

fix and just prolongs the amount of time residents have to endure street noise and disruption to sleep. 

Places being open until the early hours of the morning, will only encourage people to hang around on 

the streets. As they are also requesting to be able to do late night deliveries, this will also contribute to 

noise and public safety (including the drivers’ safety). 

 

We hope you take these reasons for our objection into serious consideration and that this application 

and future ones are rejected. We also hope that these comments are remembered when other 

applications for similar requests are proposed. Our community has suffered already so much and 

things need to change. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

Page 170

Item 6Appendix 4,



Document is Restricted

Page 171

Item 6Appendix 5,
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council 
Report for Resolution 

 
Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Panel – 6 April 2021 
 
Subject: Cabrals, 735 Ashton Old Road, Manchester, M11 2HD - App ref: 

Premises Licence (new) 255642 
 
Report of: Director of Planning, Building Control & Licensing   
 

 
Summary 
 
Application for the grant of a premises licence which has attracted objections. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Panel determine the application. 
 

 
Wards Affected: Clayton & Openshaw 
 

Manchester Strategy Outcomes Summary of the contribution to the 
strategy 

A thriving and sustainable City: 
supporting a diverse and distinctive 
economy that creates jobs and 
opportunities 

Licensed premises provide a key role as an 
employer, in regeneration, and in attracting 
people to the city. The efficient processing of 
applications as well as effective decision 
making in respect of them, plays an essential 
role in enabling businesses to thrive and 
maximise contribution to the economy of the 
region and sub-region. 

A highly skilled city: world class and 
home grown talent sustaining the 
city’s economic success 

An effective Licensing regime will enable 
growth in our City by supporting businesses 
who promote the Licensing Objectives. 

A progressive and equitable city: 
making a positive contribution by 
unlocking the potential of our 
communities 

 

The Licensing process provides for local 
residents and other interested parties to make 
representations in relation to licensing 
applications. Representations have to be 
directly related to the licensing objectives. 

A liveable and low carbon city: a 
destination of choice to live, visit 
and work. 

 

An effective licensing system supports and 
enables growth and employment in our City 
with neighbourhoods that provide amenities 
suitable to the surrounding communities.  

A connected city: world class  

Page 201

Item 7



infrastructure and connectivity to 
drive growth 

 
Full details are in the body of the report, along with any implications for: 
 
Equal Opportunities Policy 
Risk Management 
Legal Considerations 
 

 
Financial Consequences – Revenue 
 
None 
 
Financial Consequences – Capital 
 
None 
 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name: Fraser Swift 
Position: Principal Licensing Officer  
Telephone: 0161 234 1176 
E-mail: f.swift@manchester.gov.uk 

 
Name: 

 
Chloe Tomlinson 

Position: Technical Licensing Officer  
Telephone: 0161 234 4521 
E-mail: premises.licensing@manchester.gov.uk  

 

 
Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 

 Manchester City Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 - 2021 

 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, April 2017 

 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 

 Any further documentary submissions by any party to the hearing

Page 202

Item 7

mailto:f.swift@manchester.gov.uk
mailto:premises.licensing@manchester.gov.uk


1. Introduction 

1.1 On 11 February 2021, an application for the grant of a Premises Licence 
under s17 of the Licensing Act 2003 was made in respect of Cabrals, 735 
Ashton Old Road, Manchester, M11 2HD in the Clayton & Openshaw ward of 
Manchester. A location map and photograph of the premises is attached at 
Appendix 1. 

1.2 A 28-day public consultation exercise was undertaken in accordance with 
Licensing Act 2003 regulations; requiring the application to be advertised by 
the displaying of a blue notice at or on the premises, a notice published in a 
newspaper or similar circulating in the local area, and details of the application 
published on the Council’s website. 

1.3 Representations may be made for or against an application during the 
consultation period. To be ‘relevant’ and, therefore, able to be taken into 
account in determining the application, they must be about the likely effect of 
the grant of the premises licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
Where representations are made by persons who are not a responsible 
authority, they must not be frivolous or vexatious. 

1.4 Relevant representations have been received in respect of this application and 
so it must be determined by a Licensing Hearing Panel in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution. 

2. The Application 

2.1 A copy of the application is attached at Appendix 2. 

2.2 The applicant is Cabral's Ltd. 

2.3 The description of the premises given by the applicant is ‘shop with ground 
and first floors. On the ground floor there is a door entrance, kitchen, a hall 
with bench and tables. On the first floor there’s a W.C., bar area where alcohol 
will be supplied, two restaurant areas where alcohol and food will be 
consumed and two rooms of storage.’ 

2.4 The proposed designated premises supervisor is Dayane Alves Fernandes 
Cabral. 

2.5 The licensable activities applied for: 

Provision of regulated entertainment (live music, recorded music): 
Mon to Sun 9am to midnight 
 
Provision of late night refreshment: 
Mon to Sun 11pm to midnight 
 
The supply of alcohol for consumption both on and off the premises: 
Mon to Sun 9am to midnight  
 
Opening hours: 

Page 203

Item 7



Mon to Sun 9am to midnight  
 
Seasonal variation hours for all of the above licensable activities:  
9am to 2am on Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve 
 

2.5.1 In accordance with the Live Music Act 2012 and Deregulation Act 2015, 
performances of Live Music and Recorded Music between the hours of 0800 
and 2300 hours have been deregulated and so should not be regarded as 
licensable activities for the purposes of this application. 

2.5.2 Any further details provided relating to any of the individual licensable 
activities are specified on the application form at Appendix 2. 

2.6 Activities unsuitable for children  

2.6.1 The applicant has not highlighted any adult entertainment or services, 
activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the premises 
that may give rise to concern in respect of children. 

2.7 Steps to promote the licensing objectives 

2.7.1 The applicant proposes to promote the licensing objectives by taking the steps 
identified in the operating schedule. 

2.7.2 These steps must be translated into conditions by the licensing authority to be 
included in any granted premises licence, unless the conditions are modified 
by the Panel following consideration of relevant representations. These 
conditions are set out in the Schedule of Conditions at Appendix 4. 

3. Relevant Representations 

3.1 A total of 1 relevant representation was received in respect of the application 
(Appendix 3). An original copy of this representation will be available to the 
Panel at the hearing. 

Responsible Authorities:  

 Greater Manchester Police; 

3.2 Summary of the representations: 

Party Grounds of representation Recommends 

GMP The granting of this application would 
undermine the licensing objectives of 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the 
Prevention of Public Nuisance, Public Safety 
and the Protection of Children from Harm. This 
is because the operating schedule which 
accompanies the application offers very 
generic conditions which are not specific to the 
operation of these premises. It gives the 
impression that the applicant has a limited 

Refuse 

Page 204

Item 7



understanding of the Licensing Objectives, 
which raises concerns about how the premises 
will be operated. 

3.3 Any conditions proposed by objectors are set out in the Schedule of 
Conditions at Appendix 4. 

4. Key Policies and Considerations 

4.1 Legal Considerations 

4.1.1 Hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 operate under the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005. 

4.2 New Information 

4.2.1 In accordance with Regulation 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005, the authority may take into account documentary or other 
information produced by a party in support of their application, representations 
or notice either before the hearing or, with the consent of all parties, at the 
hearing. 

4.3 Hearsay Evidence 

4.3.1 The Panel may accept hearsay evidence and it will be a matter for the Panel 
to attach what weight to it that they consider appropriate. Hearsay evidence is 
evidence of something that a witness neither saw nor heard, but has heard or 
read about. 

4.4 The Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 

4.4.1 The Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003 is provided for all 
parties involved in licensing. It is a key medium for promoting best practice, 
ensuring consistent application of licensing powers across England and Wales 
and for promoting fairness, equal treatment and proportionality.  

4.4.2 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a 
licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State under section 182. The Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing 
authorities to that extent. However, the Guidance cannot anticipate every 
possible scenario or set of circumstances that may arise and, as long as 
licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they may depart 
from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.  

4.4.3 Departure from the Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, 
and the reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when 
considering the lawfulness and merits of any decision taken. 

4.5 Manchester Statement of Licensing Policy 

Page 205

Item 7



4.5.1 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a 
licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ its statement of licensing policy. 

4.5.2 The Licensing Policy sets out the vision the licensing authority has for the 
regulation of licensed premises throughout Manchester and outlines the 
standards expected in order to ensure the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in the city. The Panel may depart from the policies should it 
consider doing so would benefit the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
Reasons are to be given for any such departure from the Policy. 

4.5.3 Section 4 of the Policy (Operation of the Policy) sets out how the Licensing 
Policy is intended to be used in practice for licence applications and licensed 
premises. 

 Section 6: What we aim to encourage 
 This section identifies certain types of venues and initiatives the licensing 

authority aims to encourage in order to promote an inclusive evening and 
night-time economy not simply focused on the consumption of alcohol. We 
aim to encourage: 

 Premises that will extend the diversity of entertainment and attract a 
wider range of participants 

 Live music, especially original material, which will provide a range of 
live performances and styles of music, provided that such 
entertainment does not undermine the licensing objectives 

 National cultural institutions, global sports events and cultural festivals 

 Non-drink-led premises, including restaurants, cafes, theatres and 
cinemas 

 Communication and integration with local residents and businesses 
through licensees consulting with those in the local area prior to an 
application 

 Participation in Pubwatches, off licence forums and other crime-
reduction partnerships 

 Engagement with the NITENET radio scheme and DISC secure 
information sharing platform by city centre venues through the Cityco 
Manchester Business Crime Reduction Partnership 

 Designing out crime in the layout of the premises 

 Section 7: Local factors   
 This section sets out key issues that applicants are expected to take into 

account relevant to the individual characteristics of the premises when 
preparing their operating schedule and address any local factors relevant to 
their premises.  

 Having regard to the grounds of the representations made, the Panel are 
recommended to have regard to the following Factors: 

 Identified risk factors specific to the licensed premises 

 Evidence of pre-existing problems in the area 

 Proximity of takeaways and off-licences to nightlife entertainment areas  

 Consistency with relevant Council strategies 

 The proximity of the premises to local residents and other local 
businesses, particularly in relation to the potential for nuisance  

Page 206

Item 7



 Proximity to sensitive uses 

 The availability of transport to and from the premises 

 Ability to clean and maintain the street scene 

 Premises in proximity to the airport  

 Section 8: Manchester’s standards to promote the licensing objectives 
 This section identifies the standards that the licensing authority expects of 

licensed premises in Manchester. It is recognised that not all standards will be 
appropriate to apply in every situation to every premises, and applicants are 
not obliged to include all standards in their operating schedule. The degree to 
which standards would be appropriate is expected to be proportionate to the 
risk posed against the promotion of the licensing objectives having regard to 
the individual circumstances of the premises. The standards are not 
exhaustive and the licensing authority will have regard to any relevant issues 
raised in any representation that may fall outside them.   

MS1 Implement effective security measures at the premises  

MS2 Effective general management of the premises  

MS3 Responsible promotion and sale of alcohol  
MS4  Prevent the use of illegal drugs, new psychoactive substances (NPS) 

and the spiking of drinks at the premises  

MS5 Prevent on-street consumption of alcohol  

MS6 Provide a Duty of Care for intoxicated or vulnerable customers and 

medical emergencies  

MS7 Maintain a safe capacity  
MS8 Prevent noise nuisance from the premises 
MS9 Effectively manage exterior spaces (e.g. beer gardens, smoking 

areas, table and chair areas on the highway) 
MS10 Operate effective cleansing arrangements, including ensuring the 

premises and surrounding area are kept clean and free of litter, and 

adequate arrangements for the secure and responsible storage of 

refuse 
MS11   Ensure the wellbeing of children on the premises 
MS12   Prevent underage sales of alcohol, including proxy sales 

 Conclusion 

4.6   A licensing authority must carry out its functions under this Act (“licensing 
functions”) with a view to promoting the licensing objectives: 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety; 

 the prevention of public nuisance; and 

 the protection of children from harm. 

4.7   In considering the matter, the Panel should take into account any 
representations or objections that have been received from responsible 
authorities or other persons, and representations made by the applicant or 
premises user as the case may be. In reaching the decision, regard must also 
be had to relevant provisions of the national guidance and the Council’s 
licensing policy statement. 

Page 207

Item 7



4.8   Having regard to the representations, the Panel must take such of the steps 
set out below that it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives: 

a)  To grant the licence subject to: 
i. the conditions consistent with the operating schedule 

accompanying the application, which the Panel may modify 
to such extent as they consider appropriate, and 

ii. any mandatory conditions that must be included in the 
licence; 

b)  To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates; 

c)  To refuse to specify the person proposed in the application as the 
designated premises supervisor; 

d)  To reject the application. 

4.9   The conditions consistent with the operating schedule may be modified to alter 
or omit any of them or to add any new condition, including restricting the times 
at which licensable activities authorised by the licence can take place. 

4.10   All licensing determinations should be considered on the individual merits of 
the application. 

4.11   The Panel’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to 
what it is intended to achieve. Findings on any issues of fact should be on the 
balance of probability. 

4.12   It is important that a licensing authority should give comprehensive reasons 
for its decisions in anticipation of any appeals. Failure to give adequate 
reasons could itself give rise to grounds for an appeal.  

4.13   The Panel is asked to determine the application.

 

Page 208

Item 7



 

 

 

 

PREMISE NAME: Cabrals 

PREMISE ADDRESS:  735 Ashton Old Road, Manchester, M11 2HD 

WARD:  Clayton & Openshaw 

HEARING DATE:  06/04/2021 

 

Page 209

Item 7Appendix 1,



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 211

Item 7Appendix 2,



Page 212

Item 7Appendix 2,



Page 213

Item 7Appendix 2,



Page 214

Item 7Appendix 2,



Page 215

Item 7Appendix 2,

tomlinsonch
Text Box
9am to 2am on New Year's Eve and Christmas Eve



Page 216

Item 7Appendix 2,

tomlinsonch_1
Text Box
9am to 2am on New Year's Eve and Christmas Eve



Page 217

Item 7Appendix 2,

tomlinsonch_2
Text Box
11pm to 2am on New Year's Eve and Christmas Eve



Page 218

Item 7Appendix 2,

tomlinsonch_3
Text Box
9am to 2am on New Year's Eve and Christmas Eve



Page 219

Item 7Appendix 2,

tomlinsonch_4
Text Box
9am to 2am on New Year's Eve and Christmas Eve



Page 220

Item 7Appendix 2,



Page 221

Item 7Appendix 2,



Page 222

Item 7Appendix 2,



Document is Restricted

Page 223

Item 7Appendix 3,
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - REPRESENTATION 
 

About You   
Name PC Alan Isherwood 

Address including postcode 1st Floor 
Manchester Town Hall Extension 

Lloyd Street 

Manchester 

Contact Email Address alan.isherwood@gmp.police.uk 

Contact Telephone Number 0161 856 6017 

 

About the Premises 
Application Reference No.  LPA 255642 

Name of the Premises Cabrals 

Address of the premises 
including postcode 

735 Ashton Old Road, Manchester M11 2HD 

 

Your Representation 
Please outline your representation below and continue overleaf.  This should describe the 
likely effect of the grant of the licence on the licensing objectives on and in the vicinity of the 
premises in question. 
Please accept this as formal notification of the Greater Manchester Police objection to the premises licence in 

relation to the above premises on the grounds of Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the Prevention of Public 

Nuisance, Public Safety and the Protection of Children from Harm. 

 
The operating schedule which accompanies the application offers very generic conditions which are not specific 
to the operation of these premises. It gives the impression that the applicant has a limited understanding of the 
Licensing Objectives, which raises concerns about how the premises will be operated. 
 
The likely effect of the grant of the Premises Licence with such a generic operating schedule is that all 4 of the 
Licensing Objectives will be undermined. 
 
We therefore ask that this application is refused. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 239

Item 7Appendix 4,



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Schedule of Licence Conditions 
 

Conditions consistent with the operating schedule Agreed Proposed by 

1. The licence holder shall ensure that all staff undertake training in 
their responsibilities in relation to the sale of alcohol. 

2. Any incidents of a criminal nature will be reported to the police. 

3. There shall be CCTV coverage at the premises and acceptable 
age verification (proof of age). 

4. Appropriate fire safety procedures shall be in place. 

5. Staff shall receive training about general emergency and 
general safety precautions and procedures. 

6. Free drinking water shall be made available. 

7. There shall be no irresponsible drinks promotions. 

8. Staff shall prevent nuisance to neighbours from noise, litter, 
lighting. 

9. Clear and legible notices will be prominently displayed to remind 
customers to leave quietly and have regard to neighbours. 

  

N/A 

 

Applicant 

   

Conditions proposed by objectors Agreed Proposed by 

None N/A N/A  

 

 

Page 241

Item 7Appendix 5,



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 New Premises Licence - TBC, 135 Levenshulme Road, Manchester, M18 7NF - determination
	5 New Premises Licence - The Progress Centre and Car park, Charlton Place, Manchester, M12 6HS
	Appendix 1- Location
	Appendix 2 - Application
	Appendix 3- Objections
	Appendix 4- Schedule of conditions
	Appendix 5 -
	Insert from: "PYAQuarries.pdf"
	169
	170
	171
	172
	173
	174
	175
	176
	177
	178
	179
	180
	181
	182
	183
	184
	185
	186
	187
	188
	189
	190
	191
	192


	plan - CONFIDENTIAL

	6 New Premises Licence - Dixy Chicken, Unit 1, 5a Wilbraham Road, Manchester, M14 6JS
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 2 CONFIDENTIAL
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 3 CONFIDENTIAL

	7 New Premises Licence - Cabrals, 735 Ashton Old Road, Manchester, M11 2HD
	Appendix 1 - Location Photo
	Appendix 2 - Application Form
	Appendix 2 - Application Form - CONFIDENTIAL
	Appendix 3 - Representations
	Appendix 4 - Schedule of Conditions




